
Fort Irwin Installation Support Services 
Solicitation W9124B-11-R-0019, Amendment 0003 – Questions & Answers  
 

1 

 

Q1:  How many man hours per year are allotted for fire prevention?  DOD INST 6055.06 in 
Enclosure 9 describes fire prevention staffing based on square footage of buildings to be assessed 
but in the PWS this was not addressed.   
 
A1:  Fort Irwin has over 16 million sq. ft. of buildings.  See Q&A 64.   
 
Q2:  What staffing positions are included in the “Fire Crew” total annual man hours of 177,632 
as listed in the PWS?   
 
A2:  2 Structural; 1 Aircraft Rescue Firefighting (ARFF) Engine; 1 Structural/ARFF Engine; 
Flight Paramedic; Battalion Chief.  See Q&A 64. 
 
Q3:  AR 420-90 Chapter 1 Section IV 1-19 on page 4 states that the Installation/Garrison will 
provide all personal protective equipment and station uniforms that meet or exceed applicable 
NFPA, DOD, and OSHA Standards.  Is this applicable at Fort Irwin?  
 
A3:  Yes. 
 
Q4:  How many Annual Man-hours does the Mail Services portion of the RFP call for? 
 
A4:  Offerors are required to propose the manning level necessary to operate the customer 
service window for the hours defined in the PWS and to sort/transfer mail as defined in the PWS 
based upon the anticipated workload history provided in C.12. 
 
Q5:  How many Annual Man-hours does the Vehicle Registration portion of the RFP call for?  
 
A5:  Offerors are required to propose the manning level necessary to complete 6000 +/- vehicle 
and weapons registrations, 36,000 temporary vehicle passes, and to provide coverage for the 
required hours of operation. Monday thru Friday 0630 to 1530 at buildings 9 and 312.     The 
PWS has been updated to define the required hours of operation.   
 
Q6:  How many Annual Man-hours does the Weapons Registration portion of the RFP call for?  
 
A6:  See Q&A 5. Vehicle and Weapons Registration are designed as a combined function. 
 
Q7:  How many Annual Man-hours does the Emergency Dispatch Center portion of the RFP call 
for?  
 
A7:  Offerors are required to propose the manning level to operate the Emergency Dispatch 
Center on a 24/7/365 basis and adequate to process/screen calls in accordance with PWS C.8.4  
based on the applicable annual workload provided in C.12 and representative workload provided 
TE C.8-1-WL. However, an estimate of 2,000 incidents per year is the figure Offeror’s shall use 
to prepare their proposal. 
 
Q8:  How many Annual Man-hours does the IDS Tech. portion of the RFP call for? 
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A8:  Offerors are required to propose the manning level required to operate and maintain 109 
Intrusion Detection Systems in accordance with PWS Section C.8.5 and workload provided in 
C.12 and TE C.8-3-WL. 

Q9:  Reference: C.1.10.3 General Fund Enterprise Business System (GFEBS); C.1.10.3.1(c), As 
necessary, identify potential effective and efficient processes and make recommendations for 
Government approval to merge historic real property data and transactional data from previously 
used systems (e.g., IFS and Maximo®) into the GFEBS system. Question: What is the current 
DPW Work Control/Inventory Management System? Will the system be made available to the 
follow-on contractor? 
 
A9:  Maximo.  Yes the system will be made available for historical data only.  Upon award of 
this new contract it will be implemented in GFEBS. 
 
Q10:  Reference:  Section B, Estimated Materials CLINs 
Question: What items are included in the government-provided plug numbers for these CLINs?  
Is contractor furnished equipment included? 
 
A10:  For the functional areas that will be predominantly supported by a Firm Fixed Price (FFP) 
business arrangement (i.e. DPTMS, DHR, DES and MEDDAC) offerors shall include in their 
proposal, in accordance with the offeror’s accounting practices, costs for materials and 
equipment, not specifically identified as GFP, that they determine necessary to perform the 
services required by the PWS to include any maintenance/repair costs associated with this 
contractor furnished equipment.  These costs shall be included in the FFP CLINs and will not be 
reimbursable under the corresponding estimated Materials CLINS for those functional areas.  
Additionally, offerors shall include in their FFP CLINS, for these same functional areas, all 
supplies, materials, certifications, etc. that are of a routine/reocurring nature (i.e. consumable 
office products, employee certifications, etc.)  These items are not subject to reimbursement 
under the cost reimbursable CLINS.  The estimated Materials CLINs are intended for 
reimbursement of materials necessary to repair/maintain GFP, or for replacement of items 
included on the GFP listings when purchase has been pre-approved by the COR.  Additionally, 
the estimated Materials CLINS will be used for reimbursement of other supplies, materials, and 
equipment of a non-routine and/or un-predictable nature that are required to support the 
operation of those functional areas provided the appropriate pre-approvals have been received 
IAW the PWS, purchase is IAW the contractor’s approved Purchasing Plan, and costs are 
allowable pursuant to FAR Part 31 and applicable Agency Supplements (e.g. replacement 
components/parts to repair the IDS in support of DES; labels, ink, toner for the meter machine in 
support of the DHR, etc.). 
  
Purchases will be reimbursed under the DPW Estimated Materials CLIN for the purchase of pre-
approved direct supplies/materials/equipment required in performance of the DPW effort in 
accordance with the requirements in the PWS, the contractor’s approved Purchasing Plan, FAR 
Part 31 and Agency Supplements. 
 
Also, see revisions to PWS C.4.4 Contractor Furnished Material. 



Fort Irwin Installation Support Services 
Solicitation W9124B-11-R-0019, Amendment 0003 – Questions & Answers  
 

3 

 

 
Q11:  Reference:  Section L, Volume IV, Cost/Price. 
Question:  Where do we include contractor-provided ODCs? Please identify the CLIN where 
these costs are to be included. 
 
A11:  See revised Section L.C.3(d). 
 
Q12:  Reference:  The collective bargaining agreement in paragraphs 09.03.00 and 51.03.00 
indicates that the performing contractor prepares quarterly Seniority Rosters.  
Question:  In order to properly price the non-productive cost elements that are driven by 
employee seniority, please provide bidders with a copy of these Seniority Rosters such that 
average seniority may be determined. 
 
A12:  The information that we are authorized to provide is in the attached Collective Bargaining 
Agreements (CBAs).  It is up to each offeror to determine how they will price non-productive 
cost elements in their proposals.  In accordance with FAR 52.222-41(n) a seniority list will be 
provided to the successor contractor at commencement of award. 
 
Q13:  Reference:  Attachment 8, Collective Bargaining Agreement.  
Question:  The CBA provided contains two documents that appear to be Appendix “A” Wages. 
One begins on page 127 of the CBA and the other begins after page 154. These documents are 
not in complete agreement with each other. For example, one indicates that the wage effective on 
10/1/2012 for a Work Reception Clerk is $16.40 per hour, while the other indicates that the wage 
for the Work Reception Clerk is $16.41. Please identify to bidders which of these two tables is 
the one that should be used by bidders in pricing their proposals. 
 
A13:  The correct table is the table located at the end of the CBA (i.e. after page 154). 
 
Q14:  Reference:  FAR clause 52.222-41, “Service Contract Act Of 1965” has been incorporated 
by reference at Section I, but there is no applicable Service Contract Wage Determination 
included. Question:  Will the government provide the applicable Service Contract Wage 
Determinations? 
 
A14:  All Collective Bargaining Agreements (CBAs) and Wage Determinations applicable to 
this requirement are provided as Attachments  8, 11, 12, 13, 14 and 15, and Section J has been 
updated accordingly. 
 
Q15:  Reference:  Page 89 of 103, Section L, Instructions, Conditions, and Notices to Offerors, 
Proposal Content, paragraph (c) Tab A Small Business Participation Plan item d. states that 
“Each percentage above shall be accompanied by detailed supporting documentation regarding 
individual commitments. Detailed explanations shall also be provided when the percentage falls 
short of the goals identified in Section M of the solicitation.”  
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Q15a: Question 1:  Section M doesn’t contain specific SB participation goals, although there 
were goals identified in the draft RFP.  Did the Government intend to provide minimum SB 
subcontracting goals?  
 
A15a:  The DoD Small Business goals have been added to Section L Paragraph C.3(c) Tab B 
“Small Business Subcontracting Plan.”  Offeror’s approach to meet these goals will be evaluated 
in review of the SB Subcontracting Plan.  Small Business goals will not be included in Section M 
because each offeror is required to propose their own small business participation targets in the 
Small Business Participation Plan.  See revisions to Section L.C.3(c).  
 
Q15b:  Question 2:  If there are no identified minimum SB goals, how will the government 
compare and evaluate the various competitor’s submittals? Is the evaluation of the SB programs 
of the various competitors purely subjective? 
 
A15b:  Offerors Small Business Participation Plan proposals will be evaulated consistently, 
based on the merits of the proposal, in accordance with the evaluation elements and rating 
definitions provided in Section M of the solicitation. 
 
Q16:  Reference:  Section M, Factor 3, Small Business Participation Plan, item (2)  the extent of 
commitment to use such firms (for example, enforceable commitments such as signed teaming 
agreements are to be considered more heavily than non-enforceable ones) Question:  Until an 
award of contract is made by the Government to a bidder, a subcontract to an SB cannot be 
issued. The Government’s desire to provide an enforceable commitment with SB subcontractors 
is in conflict with standard contracting practices. A binding agreement cannot be issued until the 
SB subcontractor is issued a contract that both parties agree to. Will the Government consider an 
MOU between the bidder and the subcontractor to be an acceptable commitment for purposes of 
the SB Participation Plan?  
 
A16:  Yes, as long as the MOU is signed by both parties. 
 
Q17:  Reference:  The PWS states in Section C.7.4.1.4.3 Workload, “Reference C.12, PWS 
Workload.” Question:  There is no workload for Section C.7.4.1.4. Will the government please 
provide the workload data?    
 
A17:  C.7.4.1.4 was inadvertently mis-numbered as C.7.4.1.3 in Section C.12 of the PWS.  The 
PWS has been revised.  Workload data is "Dumpsters in Cantonment Area = 216 Locations.” 
 
Q18:  Reference:  Page 165, PWS C.3.5.6, Heavy Equipment, Number of heavy equipment 
service orders (DPW), 600. Question:  Can the government provide a listing of detailed PM 
requirements by equipment type and is this information listed in the correct PWS reference? 
 
A18:  No.  This detailed data is not available.  However, the equipment requiring preventative 
maintenance is included in the Government Furnished Property (GFP) list which has been 
provided.  Maintenance shall be performed IAW C.3.5.6 of the PWS. 
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Q19:  Reference:  Pages 166 (bottom) and top of page 167, Service Orders.  
Question:  On the bottom of page 166 it states that the 40,000 Service Orders represent the total 
number of PM, Project, Repair, and Service Orders (Routine, Urgent, & Emergency), and on the 
top of page 167 the first 4 lines for PWS C.7.1.1.3 indicate a total of 41,100 service orders for 
Routine, Urgent, Emergency and After-Hour Service Orders. How do these numbers compare to 
the total number on the bottom of page 166? Do the number of service orders listed in PWS 
7.1.1.3 include the other listing of service orders presented throughout the Section C.12 for 
example Building and Structures, Sign Shop, Electrical, HVAC, etc.? 
 
A19:  Offerors shall use 41,100.  All work orders referenced for specific functions are included 
in the 41,100.  C.12 has been corrected to reflect 41,100.  Workload estimates in PWS Section 
C.12 should be used for proposal preparation purposes. 
 
Q20:  Reference:  Page 171, PWS C.7.4.1.5.1.a, Landfill Operations, shows a total of 20,000 
man-hours of operation. Question:  What functions are included in these hours? For example, are 
sorters, scalers, etc., included?   
 
A20:  The contractor will be required to operate the landfill IAW C.7.4.1.5.1 of the PWS.  All 
the functions of maintaining and operating a landfill are included in the 20,000 hours.  Offerors 
shall propose their approach, to include staffing, to providing these services as part of their 
Mission Capability proposal. Note: On Ft Irwin, the State of California and San Bernadino 
County rules apply.  Ref:  TM–5-814-5 
 
Q21:  Reference:  There is information missing in the listing for equipment for the various 
functional areas that would affect the staffing numbers: Question:  Please provide missing data.  
 
Q21a:  No listing of backflow preventers to be maintained 
 
A21a:  There are no backflow preventers to be maintained in performance of this contract 
outside the line of demarcation – these are currently being maintained by a privatized contractor. 
 
Q21b:  No listing of plumbing equipment, i.e., values to exercise to be maintained 
 
A21b:  Please refer to TE C.7-23 which shows that plumbing equipment is built into the 
buildings and up to the Line of Demarcation.  Please also refer to TE C.7-15-WL, Real Property 
Asset File (RPAF) as no separate listing for plumbing equipment exists. 
 
Q21c:  No listing for other Building and Structures equipment under PM program 
 
A21c:  Please refer to Real Property Asset File (RPAF) TE C.7-15-WL, and TE C.7-16-SPEC. 
 
Q21d:  No listing for any electrical equipment, other than Generators, to be maintained under the 
PM program. 
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A21d:  Electrical equipment to be maintained under this contract is installed in the buildings and 
up to the Line of Demarcation as defined in TE C.7-22.  Please also refer to the Real Property 
Asset File (RPAF) TE-C.7-15-WL, as no separate listing for electrical equipment exists. 
 
Q22:  Reference:  Section C.12 page 167, C.7.2.1, Buildings and Structures – Repairs, Number 
of PM service orders is 375. Question:  What equipment is included in this number?  
 
A22:  Installed Building Equipment (TE C.7-16-SPEC). 
 
Q23:  What government-furnished vehicles are provided to the contractor, and who maintains the 
GFV? 
 
A23:  The government furnished vehicles to be provided are included in the GFP listings.  The 
contractor maintains all government furnished property.  Refer to revised TE C.3-2-GFP posted 
with this amendment. 
 
Q24:  Reference:  Payment and Performance Bonds (Section H and FAR 52.228-15) and 
reference to Performance and Payment Bonds for IJOs on page 48 of the RFP.  
Question:  Will Subcontractor Bonds be sufficient to satisfy these requirements or will the 
government require bonds from both the Prime Contractor and Subcontractors on IJOs? 
 
A24:  Construction efforts of the magnitude requiring bonds or alternative payment protections 
IAW FAR 52.228-13 and 52.228-15 are not anticipated to be issued under this contract and it is 
not anticipated that separate IJOs will be issued for this type of work.  The Davis Bacon hours 
provided in Section C.12 of the PWS are intended for services orders that, by the nature of the 
work, convert to Davis Bacon work (IAW DFARS 222.402-70) and for which Davis Bacon 
rules/wages apply (Please note that the 40,000 estimated man-hours in Section C.12 have been 
revised to 16,640 estimated man-hours for Davis Bacon Work).  Service Orders that convert to 
Davis Bacon work will be reviewed individually and a determination made by the Government 
whether to continue the work under the ISS contract or complete the effort by some other means.  
Accordingly FAR clauses 52.228-2, 52.228-11, 52.228-12,  52.228-13, 52.228-14, and 52.228-
15 have been deleted from the solicitation and Section H has been revised.  
 
Q25:  Reference:  Section H, Payment and Performance Bonds, states that bonds are required 
prior to starting any IJO project. Question:  Please confirm that this will only apply to Individual 
Job Order (IJO) projects over $150,000 dollars per FAR 52.228-15. 
 
A25:  See A24 above. 
 
Q26:  Reference:  PWS Para. 7.1.1.2 Operations and Maintenance Management, states: 
“Contractor shall respond to service orders (SOs); complete preventive maintenance (PM), and 
complete individual job orders for facilities across Fort Irwin including Barstow/Daggett listed in 
the real property asset file (RPAF).” Question:  Will the government provide historic data for 
IJOs for offerors to use in proposal preparation?  
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A26:  Estimated annual workload is provided in C.12 under Davis Bacon Projects, the 40,000 
hours are an estimate only (Please note that the 40,000 estimated man-hours have been revised to 
16,640 estimated man-hours and is updated in Section C.12 of the PWS).  The Government only 
anticipates issuing minimal Davis Bacon work under the ISS contract for work that originated as 
a service order.  See A24 above.    
 
Q27:  Reference:  DFAR clause 252.226-7001, “Utilization of Indian Organizations and Indian-
Owned Economic Enterprises, and Native Hawaiian Small Business Concerns” has been 
incorporated by reference at Section I. Question:  Will the government also provide incentive 
payments by incorporating FAR 52.226-1, “Utilization of Indian Organizations and Indian-
Owned Economic Enterprises”? 
 
A27:  No.  FAR 52.226-1 will not be incorporated into the solicitation. 
 
Q28:  Reference:  Under FAR clause 52.222-5, “Davis-Bacon Act—Secondary Site of the 
Work,” if an offeror is unsure if a planned work site satisfies criteria for a secondary site of the 
work, the offeror shall request a determination from the Contracting Officer.  
Question:  Will the government provide a list of all secondary work sites and applicable wage 
decisions? 
 
A28:  All work to be performed under this contract is anticipated to be performed at Fort Irwin, 
CA.  No secondary work sites are anticipated, however, if Davis Bacon work is to be performed 
at a site not covered by the WD in the contract, the contractor shall request a WD from the ACO 
prior to performance of that Davis Bacon work.  
 
Q29:  Reference:  Contrary to the statement at RFP Section L, subparagraph B.3, “Time for 
Acceptance,” Block 12 of SF 33 specifies a period of 60 days. RFP Section L.B.3 states bid 
validity will be “180” days.  Question:  Does the government require bidders to insert the 
number “180” at Block 9 of SF 33 or will the government insert this date? 
 
A29:  Offerors are required to complete Block 12 of the SF33.  The Government requests that 
proposals remain valid for 180 days to allow adequate time to evaluate proposals and make 
award. 
 
Q30:  Does the government intend to post the list of site visit attendees? 
 
A30:  Yes.  A list will be posted in conjunction with the posting of this amendment. 
 
Q31:  Reference:  Small Business Participation Plan Rating Definitions in Section M:  
Questions: 
 
Q31a:  Does the government view an intent to award notification letter from the prime to the 
subcontractor as a enforceable commitment? 
 
A31a:  Yes, as long as it is signed by both parties. 
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Q31b:  What % of the total contract value does the government consider “a significant amount of 
the value of the total acquisition”? 
 
A31b:  An arbitrary numerical percent will not be affixed to the phrase “significant amount of 
the value of the total acquisition.”  Proposal evaluations will be based on the merit of each 
proposal and its unique aspect(s), if any. 
 
Q32:  Reference:  Attachment 8, CBA #166.  Fire suppression personnel work 24 hour shifts.  
They are paid 1.5 overtime when they work over 40 hours a week.  
Question:  Does each shift, defined as 24 hours, count towards the 40 hour work week?  E.g. if 
they work 2 days a week (total of 48 hours) they are entitled to 8 hours of overtime in this 
example. 
 
A32:  The obligation of the successor contractor is limited to the wage and fringe benefit 
requirements of the predecessor’s collective bargaining agreement(s) and does not extend to 
other terms/conditions of the CBA, such as seniority, work rules, overtime, etc.  It is incumbent 
upon each offeror to determine labor requirements as they relate to overtime.  The shift 
configuration (8, 12, 24 hours) is not mandated by the PWS.  Each offeror shall propose the most 
cost effective approach to fully staff this function.  Offeror’s firm fixed price proposals shall 
include all required manning to support the Directorate of Emergency Services (DES).  
 
Q33:  Reference:  PWS C.7.1.4 / C.12.1, Public Works Part and Materials Warehouse, page 94 
and 167. The PWS states: "The Contractor shall manage and maintain the warehouse containing 
DPW parts and materials to the extent that space is available within the Government furnished 
facility (GFF). The Contractor shall procure all repair parts and materials necessary to maintain 
proper inventory levels based on demand loads." / "C.7.1.4, Parts and Materials Warehouse, 
Number of operational hours, 2,000" Question:  Will the customer please provide for the Public 
Works Parts and Materials Warehouse: dimensions of GFF (the space available), workload data 
to include number of stocked lines, demand history, and GFE supporting the warehouse?   
 
A33:  RPAF (TE C.7-15-WL) provides square footage for Warehouses (Bldg # 364 and 344).  
There are also two materials yards totaling approximately 3,000 SF of storage space.   The 
successor contractor will have the opportunity to utilize the buildings provided to their best 
advantage.  Historical demand data is not available. 
 
Q34:  Reference:  PWS C.7.1.5, Disposing of Excess Inventory, page 95. The PWS states: "The 
Contractor shall identify, pack, and deliver to the Government at Fort Irwin or to the Defense 
Logistics Agency Disposition Services (DLADS), Barstow, all Government-owned materials and 
repair parts, which become excess in the course of performance of the contract." 
Question:  Does this apply solely to the Directorate of Public Works (Parts and Materials 
Warehouse) excess inventory?   
 



Fort Irwin Installation Support Services 
Solicitation W9124B-11-R-0019, Amendment 0003 – Questions & Answers  
 

9 

 

A34:  This applies to anything that is determined excess and unserviceable in the course of 
performing the ISS contract.  The contractor will be required to turn it in to the DLADS for 
disposal. See PWS Section C.7.1.5.1.  
 
Q35:  Reference:  Section J, HVAC Inventory, pages 169-171, 187-202, 214-225 
Question:  Will the Government provide the unit sizes for the equipment on these pages?  
 
A35:  Fort Irwin has 1 - 80 ton unit sizes depending on the size of the building.  Please refer to 
TE C.7-25-WL which also includes parts for HVAC units which are different sizes. 
 
Q36:  Reference:  PWS 7.3.10.1 (D), HVAC Inventory, page 120. "Monthly clean permanent 
type filters and replace the throw-away type in Buildings 13, 237, 985, 988 and 990. 
Question:  Will the customer please provide the unit types and sizes for the equipment in 
buildings 985, 988 and 990?   
 
A36:  Building numbers are not necessarily listed in sequence, but all are included in TE C.7-25-
WL. 
 
Q37:  Reference:  PWS C.7.1.4.1f, Public Works Parts and Materials, page 94. The PWS states: 
"Operate a limited self-help program (managed through the parts warehouse) for issue of 
common use items as approved by the Government." Question:  Will the customer please 
provide a listing of approved self-help items to be stocked? Is the contractor responsible for self-
help program user training, certification and other program administration tasks? 
 
A37:  This is a limited self help program.  Current inventory will remain in place.  No user 
training or certification is required.  
 
Q38:  Reference:  PWS C.7.1.4.2 / C.12, page 94 / 167.  PWS C.7.1.4.2 states: "The warehouse 
shall be manned 40 hours per week." This would give a total of 2080 hours annually.  In C.12.1 
Specific Annual Workload table, it states that there are only 2000 annual operational hours for 
the Public Works Parts and Materials Warehouse. Question:  With the apparent discrepancy 
between the two references, what is the correct number of operational hours per year for the 
Public Works Parts and Materials Warehouse? 
 
A38:  The contractor shall propose the methodology for operating the Public Works Parts and 
Material Warehouse in the most efficient manner to issue parts and materials to their work crews 
who will perform maintenance and repairs. C.12 has been updated accordingly. C.7.1.4.2 has 
been revised to remove the requirement for the warehouse to be manned 40 hours per week. 
 
Q39:  What type of information is displayed on the current 911 call system on an incoming call?  
 
A39:  Call back number, latitude/longitude location, and address of call if from an on post 
residence. 
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Q40:  What sports/athletic fields have in-ground sprinkler systems?  Please provide the 
maintenance history for the last 24 months for each system. 
 
A40:  The ISS contractor will not be required to maintain the sprinkler systems on the sports 
fields.  Those systems are under a separate Privatization contract.  However, if the ISS contractor 
breaks the sprinkler heads or the system, they will be required to pay the cost for repair or 
replacement. 
 
Q41:  Reference:  Schedule B and the Direct Labor Tables. There is no apparent accommodation 
for PMO Staffing in the Direct Labor Table. At present, PMO staffing from PWS Items C.1 
through C.4 and associated costs will need to be distributed over the Items priced in PWS items 
C.5 DPTMS, C.6 DHR, C.7 DPW C.8 DES and C.9 MEDDAC.  
 
Q41a:  Will the Government add an item in Section B and in the Direct and Summary Labor 
Tables to accommodate the cost of PMO Staffing?  
 
A41a:  A separate Contract Line Item Number (CLIN) will not be added to schedule B for PMO 
Staffing.  Costs for management and administrative staff shall be included in cost/price proposals 
as identified in Section L paragraph (d) Volume IV “Cost/Price” Tabs D and E.  Cost/Price 
proposed for this staffing shall be as deemed appropriate based on the offeror’s proposed 
management approach and cost accounting procedures.  
 
Q41b:  Does the Government want PMO staffing to be shown as a separate section in the Direct 
Labor Tables, or should this staffing be distributed throughout Sections C.5 through C.9? 
 
A41b:  Reference Section L paragraph (d) Volume IV “Cost/Price” TAB D Paragraph 2 Note (d) 
and TAB E Note (i) “Management and Administrative staff shall be clearly identified and fully 
costed, distinct and separate from labor costs prosposed for the functional areas…”.    
Accordingly, Management and Administrative staff shall be shown separately from the staffing 
identified for the functional areas C.5 through C.9.  Offerors may do this by showing it as a 
separate section on the Direct Labor Tables.  Please note that the Tables may be tailored as 
necessary by Offerors to reflect actual cost accounting practices as long as the same level of 
detail is provided as is requested in the solicitation. 
 
Q42:  Reference:  C.7.1.3 Work Reception Center; C.7.1.3.1 Tasks; Item b. The Contractor’s 
service order shall not exceed two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) of labor and material without 
approval from the Contracting Officer unless classified as a Priority service order. 
Question: Please provide the workload history for service orders that have exceeded the stated 
threshold.   
 
A42:  This data is not available. 
 
Q43:  Based on the short turnaround time for submittal of proposals, site visit held last week, and 
discussions with subcontractors during the site visit, will the government consider a 30-day 
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extension of the proposal submittal date to allow Offerors to obtain adequate competition from 
small businesses in order to complete teaming agreements? 
 
A43:  The date and time for receipt of proposals will be set to allow offerors a minimum of two 
weeks (14 calendar days) from the date of issuance of this amendment.  
 
Q44:  Reference:  Collective Bargaining Agreement, Attachment 8. Question:  Could the 
government provide the grievance history for grievances related to pay practices, work schedule 
changes, jurisdiction, or any other items that have resulted in changes to the Collective 
Bargaining Agreement that are not documented?  
 
A44:  Incumbent information will not be provided.  The information that the Government is 
authorized to provide is in the attached CBAs.  The obligation of the successor contractor is 
limited to the wage and fringe benefit requirements of the predecessor’s collective bargaining 
agreements and does not extend to other terms/conditions of the CBAs.   
 
Q45:  Section L.C.3.(b) Tab 3 / page 87 of 103, Subcontracts. Section L.C.3.(b) Tab 3 states 
"Offerors shall provide past performance information for each subcontractor, that is relevant (and 
recent) for the effort that is proposed to be performed by that subcontractor. The information 
provided for the prime Offeror and each proposed major subcontractor(s) must include the entire 
company name, company address, CAGE Code, DUNS Number and type of work to be 
performed by citing the applicable Government SOW subparagraph number. A major 
subcontractor is identified as any subcontract greater than $100,000." In order to satisfy the 
requirement for “past performance information” (underlined above), please clarify if all  major 
subcontractors on a team (any company exceeding $100,000 on this contract) must submit a Past 
Performance Questionnaire for any referenced contract? 
 
A45:  Past Performance Questionnaires shall be provided for all proposed major subcontractors 
(i.e. exceeding $100,000 per year).  Section L has been revised to clarify that the stated threshold 
is $100,000 per year.  Past performance provided for subcontractors shall be relevant (and 
recent), in accordance with the evaluation criteria, for the work the subcontractor is being 
proposed to perform.  
 
Q46:  Section L.C.3.(c) TAB A, d. / Page 88-89 of 103, Small Business Participation Plan, 
Section L.C.3.(c) Tab A d. states "Dollar value and percentage of total contract value of 
subcontracts planned" while Section L.C.3.(c) Tab A d. NOTE states "In accordance with FAR 
52.219-9(d)(1), all goals shall be expressed in terms of percentages of total planned 
subcontracting dollars." Please clarify whether Offerors are to present subcontracts planned as a 
percentage of Total Contract Value or a percentage of Total Planned Subcontracting Dollars. 
 
A46:  In the Small Business Participation Plan (Tab A), Offerors shall propose planned 
subcontract targets, for the various SB categories, as a percentage of the total proposed Contract 
Value.  In the Small Business Subcontracting Plan (Tab B), offerors shall express Small Business 
goals as a percentage of total subcontracting dollars planned.  See revised Section L Paragraph 
C.3(c). 
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Q47:  Section L.C.3.(c) TAB A, d. / Page 89 of 103, Small Business Participation Plan, Section 
L.C.3.(c) Tab A d. states "Detailed explanations shall also be provided when the percentage falls 
short of the goals identified in Section M of the solicitation." Section M does not contain Small 
Business Goals. What are the Government's goals for Small Business for this contract? 
 
A47:  See Q&A 15(a) and revised Section L Paragraph C.3(c). 
 
Q48:  Section L.C.3.(d)(2) TAB D, 1, Note (c) /Page 91 of 103, TAB D - Cost Information for 
CPFF CLINS, Cost Rationale Section, Sections L.C.3.(d)(2) TAB D, 1, Note (c) states to 
“Include a table listing historical rates for past three years (e.g. 2008, 2009, and 2010) for the 
proposed indirect rates (e.g. overhead, fringe, material handling, G&A, etc.). Supporting 
documentation for the proposed rates should be provided to include pool and allocation base 
expenses by cost element.” If Offerors’ have DCMA accepted closeout rates or Final Incurred 
Cost reports, will these letters or statements satisfy the requirement for support of the table of 
historical rates rather than pool and allocation base expenses? 
 
A48:  Yes, if the indirect rates have been accepted or audited by DCMA or DCAA respectively, 
then providing the final indirect cost rate agreements identifying the indirect rates could be 
provided for the years requested in lieu of the indirect rates’ pool and base by cost element. 
 
Q49:  Section L.C.3.(d)(2) TAB D, 1, Note (c) /Page 91 of 103, TAB D - Cost Information for 
CPFF CLINS, Cost Rationale Section, Sections L.C.3.(d)(2) TAB D, 1, Note (c) states "Unless 
already included in a CBA that is provided, list prior year (e.g. 2010) actual direct labor rates". 
Can the Government provide guidance if the actual direct labor rates did not exist in 2010? Can 
the Government clarify the requirement if the DCMA accepted practice of the Offeror is not to 
propose actual direct labor rates? Could the Offeror alternatively state the methodology to 
determine direct labor rates and/or prior year escalation to meet this requirement? 
 
A49:  If 2010 actual labor rates did not exist, this can be stated in the Basis of Estimate (BOE) or 
narrative section related to labor. The Government is not requiring the Offeror to propose actual 
direct labor rates. Offeror does need to state the methodology or basis to determine estimated 
direct labor rates and any applicable escalation applied.    
 
Q50:  Section L.C.3.(d)(2) TAB D, 1, Note (c) / Page 91 of 103, TAB D - Cost Information for  
CPFF CLINS, Cost Substantiation Section, Sections L.C.3.(d)(2) TAB D, 2 states "…A detailed 
cost proposal for each subcontract which exceeds $100,000 shall also be submitted.  Offerors are 
required to support the subcontract to the same level of detail and information as the prime 
Offeror…" Please confirm the Offeror will satisfy this requirement by submitting the direct labor 
and summary tables included in TAB D (Cost Substantiation Section) and the direct labor and 
summary tables included in TAB E?  If not, please indicate which additional TABs must be 
submitted for Subcontractors exceeding $100,000? 
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A50:  The prime offeror shall submit, or cause to be submitted by the subcontractor(s) exceeding 
$100,000 per year, all information requested in TABs D and E to include the direct labor and 
summary tables.   
 
Q51:  Section C.8.3.2, Page 142, Standards, Section C.8.3.2 states "At a minimum, 90% of the 
required individual training as outlined in Table B-1 of AR 420-90, Fire Protection, shall be 
conducted." Please confirm whether this Section should reference should be to AR 420-1, 
Chapter 25 (new AR) instead of AR 420-90 (old AR).   
 
A51:  AR 420-1 is the correct reference.  The PWS has been revised accordingly. 
 
Q52:  T.E. C.3-2, Government Furnished Property (GFP), During the site visit it was noted that a 
fleet of pick-up trucks, vans and sport utility vehicles are being used in performance of the 
current contract. Attachment 6 (Government Furnished Property) does not appear to include all 
of these vehicles.  
 
A52:  The GFP list has been revised and is provided with this amendment.   
 
Q52a:  Please clarify if all vehicles used in the performance of the current contract are 
Government-owned, Contractor-owned, or Contractor-leased?  
 
A52a:  Vehicles being utilized on the current contract are not necessarily relative to vehicles that 
will be utilized on the follow-on contract.  Vehicles to be provided by the Government for the 
follow-on ISS contract are listed in TE C.3-2-GFP.  TE C.3-2-GFP has been revised and the 
revised copy is provided with this amendment.   
 
Q52b:  If Contractor-owned or -leased, will these vehicles be provided by the Government for 
use by the selected Offeror?    
 
A52b:  No.  On contract close-out, disposal of Contractor owned/leased property is the 
responsibility of the incumbent contractor.  Government owned GFP to include vehicles, as 
designated on the revised GFP listing, will be available for use by the successor contractor.  
 
Q52c:  Is it correct to assume any and all vehicles required by the selected Offeror are included 
in the common cost figures provided by the Government for equipment and materials?   
 
A52c:  No, this is not a correct assumption.  The estimated materials CLINS (i.e. common cost 
figures) are intended for any materials necessary to repair/maintain or replace items included on 
the GFP/GFE listings when purchase has been pre-approved by the COR.  See also Q&A 10 and 
revised PWS C.4.4 for items reimbursable under these CLINS.   
 
Q52d:  If this is not a correct assumption, please advise the required documentation and proper 
placement of these costs in Volume IV – Cost/Price.   
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A52d:  It is incumbent upon each offeror to determine the proper placement of these costs within 
their proposal, in accordance with Federal Acquisition Regulations and offeror’s approved 
accounting practices. 
 
Q53:  Appendix “A” Wages (pages 130-134 of .pdf file) and Rate table at the end of Attachment 
8 (pages 162-166 of .pdf file), Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) 2011-4260, CBA 2011-
4260 contains 2 Rate Tables.  One is located in Appendix A and the second Rate Table is located 
at the end of Attachment 8.  The Rate Tables have varying rates and/or Job Classification (i.e., 
HVAC Operational Technician 990 vs HVAC Commercial Mechanic Technician CNC). Which 
is the correct Rate Table to use? 
 
A53:  The correct Rate Table to use is the one located at the end of Attachment 8. 
 
Q54:  Appendix "A-1" Wages (page 120 of .pdf file) and Appendix “A” Wages (pages 130-134 
of .pdf file) and Rate table at the end of Attachment 8 (pages 162-166 of .pdf file), Collective 
Bargaining Agreement (CBA) 2011-4260, For all job classifications proposed and covered by 
the existing Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) (Attachment 8), are Offerors required to 
use direct rates provided in Appendix "A-1" Wages and Appendix "A" Wages and defined 
benefit contributions through the end of this CBA and to use rates and benefit contributions 
effective October 31, 2012 through the remainder of the contract period of performance?  Please 
also see previous question regarding which of the 2 Rate Tables (on pages 130-134 and 162-166 
of the .pdf file) is the correct Rate Table to use. 
 
A54:  The wages provided in the CBAs and the Service Contract Act (SCA) Wage 
Determinations applicable to this acquisition are the minimum rates that the contractor is 
required to pay under this contract.  Offerors are responsible for determining rates to use in 
preparation of their proposals, however, please reference FAR clause 52.222-43 paragraph b. 
with respect to the FFP services in this solicitation. 
 
Q55:  Section L.C.3.(d)(2) TAB D, 2, Notes (d) and TAB E, Notes (h) / pages 92 and 93-94 of 
103, TAB D - Cost Information for CPFF CLINS, Cost Substantiation Section and TAB E - 
Limited Cost Data for FFP CLINS: (Prime and Subcontractor Level),  Section L.C.3.(d)(2) TAB 
D, 2, Notes (d) states “Offerors shall include costs for management and administrative staff in 
cost proposals as deemed appropriate based on proposed management approach. Management 
and administrative staff shall be clearly identified and fully costed, distinct and separate from 
labor costs proposed for the functional areas specified in Section C.7 of the PWS" and Section 
L.C.3.(d)(2) TAB E, Notes (h) states "Offerors shall include costs for management and 
administrative staff in cost proposals as deemed appropriate based on proposed management 
approach. Management and administrative staff shall be clearly identified and fully costed, 
distinct and separate from labor costs proposed for the functional areas specified in Sections C.5, 
C.6, C.8, C.9 of the PWS." The Offeror is interpreting this guidance as spreading management 
and administrative costs over both CPFF (C.7) and FFP (C.5, C.6, C.8, and C.9) CLINS. Due to 
the potential difficulty of administering these costs (i.e., the Project Manager’s responsibilities 
span across all PWS elements, both CPFF and FFP CLINs), will the government consider adding 
a separate FFP CLIN to account for all management and administrative costs? 
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A55:  See Q&A 41. 
 
Q56:  Reference: RFP section L, paragraph L.3.(d).2 states, “A detailed cost proposal for each 
subcontract which exceeds $100,000 shall also be submitted.”  
Question:  Is the $100,000 value an annual value or for the sum of the Base Period and all 
Options? 
 
A56:  Annual Value. 
 
Q57:  Reference:  RFP section B, CLIN Structure. The Base Period of the contract has CLIN 
0001 as Phase-in and CLIN 0002 as ISS DPTMS, while all Option periods have CLIN X001 as 
ISS DPTMS. Question: Would the Government consider listing CLINs X001 for the Option 
years as “NOT USED”  and make CLINS X002 through X015 the same as the Base Period, for 
the purpose of consistency and ease in cost identification and accumulation? 
 
A57:  The CLINs will not be adjusted for this purpose. 
 
Q58:  Reference: C.3.4.2, Clarification on Government furnished property and services. Will the 
Government provide a list of what equipment and vehicles are assigned a fuel key?   
 
A58:  Vehicles on the contract will have fuel keys issued.  Equipment does not have fuel keys. 
 
Q59:  Reference: C.4.2, Clarification on Contractor furnished property and services., Is the 
Contractor required to provide fuel and lubricants for Contractor owned/leased/rented vehicles 
and equipment?   
 
A59:  Fuel keys will be issued for Government and Contractor Furnished Vehicles used in 
support of this contract. Maintenance costs (i.e. lubricants) for Contractor Owned Vehicles for 
the FFP functions of the contract will be the responsibility of the Contractor. Maintenance costs 
for vehicles in support of DPW will be reimbursed in accordance with FAR Part 31, contract 
terms, and the Contractor’s approved accounting practices. 
 
Q60:  Reference: Attachment 1, PWS, C.9 MEDDAC, No RPIE list provided; Critical 
information regarding the number of chillers, etc; is desired. Will the Government please provide 
a RPIE list for the Weed Army Community Hospital and other medical facilities at Fort Irwin?  
 
A60:  TE C.7-15-WL is the Real Property Assets File (RPAF) with Medical Facilities Buildings 
included; TE C.9-1-WL is a complete list of Medical Facilities; TE C.7-25-WL is the HVAC 
Equipment Listing by Building Number and TE C.7-7-WL has a list of MEDDAC generators.   
 
Q61:  Reference: Section J, Attachment 8, Section J, Attachment 8 provides a copy of the 
Teamsters CBA; however the Machinists CBA is not included. Will the government provide a 
copy of the Machinists Union CBA corresponds to current Environmental Services employees?   
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A61:  See Q&A 14 above and revised Section J. 
 
Q62:  Reference:  Section J, Not all labor positions are listed in Collective Bargaining 
Agreement which are required to perform the government provided PWS. Please provide the 
SCA Wage Determination number that applies to this contract. 
 
A62:  See Q&A 14 above and revised Section J. 
 
Q63:  Reference: Section L, C. Proposal Preparation Instructions, #2, iii, What version of 
Microsoft Word and Excel would the Government prefer offerors use on the digital proposal 
copies? 
 
A63:  Microsoft Office 2007. 
 
Q64:  Based on the information provided in the PWS Section C.12, Anticipated Annual 
Workload, there seems to be a disparity between the number of personnel assigned as 
Firefighters and the Number of fire crew man-hours. Please clarify.  
C.8.3.1.a.(1) - Fire Crews - Number of personnel assigned as firefighters - 24  
C.8.3.1.a.(17) - Fire Crews - Number of fire crew man-hours - 177,632  
 
A64:  Total number of man-hours have changed slightly since the PWS was submitted.  Crew 

man-hours are based upon: 
Battalion Chief – 24/7/52 weeks = 8,736 hours 
Flight Paramedic – 24/7/52 weeks = 8,736 hours 
Fire Station #1 (2 structural engines) = 24/7/52 x 8 = 69,888 
Fire Station #2 – 24/7/52 x 4 = 34,944  
Fire Station - Barstow Daggett Airfield Station – 24/7/52 x 3 persons = 26,208 
148,512 

 
Number of personnel assigned as firefighters has been corrected – the correct number is 
forty eight (48).  PWS, including C.12 has been updated. 

 
Q65:  Reference Section L, paragraph C.3 Proposal Content, paragraph (a) Volume I Mission 
Capability, paragraph (2) that states: “The Mission Capability Volume shall, at a minimum, be 
prepared in a form consistent with the Performance Work Statement (PWS) and the evaluation 
criteria for award set forth in Section M of this solicitation.” Comment and Question: The PWS 
is in the form of paragraphs defined by Section C.1 through C.12 with sub-sections/paragraphs 
within each section having numerous sub-sections/paragraphs. Is it the Government’s intent the 
Mission Capability volume take this form-i.e. be broken into the 12 sections that form the PWS 
with responses for each of the 12 sections provided in accordance with the evaluation criteria in 
Section M? Or does the Government have some other intent or meaning for the form of the 
proposal. The requirement is very vague. Please explain what the Government means when it 
says the proposal is to be prepared “in a form consistent with the Performance Work Statement 
(PWS)”. 
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A65:  Mission Capability Proposals shall address how the offeror will accomplish all technical 
requirements of the functional areas of the PWS (C.5-C.9), by clearly and thoroughly addressing 
each evaluation subfactor (Management and Organization, Staffing and Qualification Approach 
Quality Approach, Technical Expertise (experience)) in the order that the PWS is written. 
 
Q66:  References: There are two references for this question: (Reference 1) Section L, paragraph 
C.3 Proposal Content, paragraph (a) Volume I Mission Capability, Tab 2 Management and 
Organization and; (Reference 2) Section M, paragraph C, Factor 1, Subfactor A. Comment and 
Questions: Reference 1 states: “Offerors shall address as specifically as possible the 
methodology/approach that would be used for accomplishing the PWS requirement.” Reference 
1 then goes on to identify several specific topics that are to be addressed in Tab 2.  
Reference 2 states: The Government will evaluate the extent to which the Offeror’s proposed 
methodology/approach will accomplish the PWS requirements”. Reference 2 then goes on to 
identify several specific topics that are to be addressed in Tab 2-the same specific items as in 
Reference 1.  The comment that the offeror should “address as specifically as possible the 
methodology/approach that would be used for accomplishing the PWS requirement”  and that the 
offeror will be evaluated by the extent to which he addresses how he will accomplish the PWS 
requirements (plural) leads to the conclusion offerors in able to obtain the highest evaluation 
must address at a minimum at least the 12 sections of the PWS (paragraphs C.1-C.12) as well as 
the specific items defined in references (1) and (2)-i.e. RFP Sections L & M. Question: Does the 
Government want/require offerors to addresses each PWS (i.e. each of Sections C.1-C.12 or at 
least technical sections C.5-C.12) and the specific items defined in Sections L&M or only the 
specific items defined in the above Section L & M references?  
 
A66:  Under Subfactor 1 “Management and Organization” in Mission Capability Proposals, 
Offerors shall, at a minimum, address the Methodology/ Approach that the Offeror will use to 
accomplish the functional areas of the PWS by addressing the multiple elements included in the 
subfactor as follows: “Identify key personnel (positions), job qualification standards (JQS) for 
these positions, and rationale for identifying each position as key.  JQS shall address, at a 
minimum, education, certifications, and professional experience requirements for each position.  
Offerors shall describe their management structure to include teaming arrangements, 
subcontractor support (to include elements of the PWS that team members/subcontractors will 
support) and relevant corporate commitment and resources the Offeror will bring to support the 
Fort Irwin ISS requirement.  Offerors shall discuss their proposed approach (to include available 
resources) to respond to increases/ decreases associated with fluctuating workload, changing 
requirements, and priorities.  Offeror shall address their approach to safety in a multi-function 
requirement to include identification of high risk safety areas, proposed mitigation, and how an 
effective and proactive safety program will be implemented and maintained during the life of the 
contract.  Offerors shall discuss their proposed approach to Life Cycle Management (LCM)  for 
real property asset file (RPAF assets, equipment in place (EIP), and installation roads and 
facilities that fall under the jurisdictional responsibility of this requirement to include a 
discussion of how their proposed LCM program will reduce/eliminate facility and equipment 
downtime and subsequent unfunded liabilities to the Government.  Offerors shall discuss cost 
reduction strategies to be implemented during contract performance to include metrics to achieve 
cost reduction goals.”  The subfactor has been revised slightly to clarify.  Proposals will be 
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evaluated based on the extent to which the proposed methodology/approach demonstrates 
successful accomplishment of the functional requirements of the PWS through addressing the 
various elements within the subfactor.  Ratings will be based on the strengths, significant 
strengths, weaknesses, significant weakness, and/or deficiencies identified in the offeror’s 
proposal in accordance with the Mission Capability rating definitions provided in Section M of 
the solicitation. 
    
Q67:  Reference TE 6.7-8-WL Historical Service Orders, FY 08, 09, 10: This question is in three 
parts that follow.  
 
Q67a:  The reference shows SOs for after hours operation. What does this entail?  
 
A67a:  After Hours SOs are for Emergency Services. The level of detail, that identifies specific 
work performed for each SO, is not available. 
 
Q67b:  The reference shows SOs for Pest Control. What type of work is this? 
 
A67b:  See PWS Section 7.4.2. 
 
Q67c:  In the reference you refer to PM SOs history. Are the SOs an indication of the number of 
equipment that has PM requirements or do they indicate the frequency of PMs for various 
equipment items?  
 
A67c:  No, they indicate the number of SO’s processed. 
 
Q68:  Reference Section M, Paragraph B Factors and Subfactors to be Evaluated, Factor 1 
Mission Capability, Subfactor A Management and Organization, page 97 of 103. The reference 
states: "The Government will evaluate the extent to which the Offeror’s methodology/approach 
will accomplish the PWS requirements." It is not clear what the Government will evaluate 
related to this statement. Please provide the elements you are going to consider. Are they 
different from those specified in the Subfactor, i. e. proposed key personnel; organization 
structure; teaming arrangement, corporate commitment and resources; response to 
increase/decrease associated with fluctuating workload; safety; LCM; reducing cost and so on?  
 
A68:  No.  See Q&A 66 above.   
 
Q69:  Reference RFP, Section C Performance Work Statement, Attachment 1 line item C.7.5.1.a. 
This line item indicates a workload of 20,000 hours annually. (1) Are the 20,000 hours direct 
hours? (2)Do the 20,000 hours include only landfill operations (i.e. operations on the landfill) or 
do they include pick-up, delivery and other work. Please specify what the 20,000 hours include. 
 
A69:  Landfill does not perform pick-up and delivery.  This is to operate the landfill.   
 
Q70:  Reference RFP Attachment 8, Collective Bargaining Agreement. Please provide the listing 
of personnel covered under the union agreement for the ISS contract only. 
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A70:  Listing is provided as Attachment 16  to this amendment. 
 
Q71:  Reference C.7.3.5 Custodial Services. a. How many square feet of the following requires 
custodial services? i. Carpet, ii.Tile, iii. Concrete b. How many bathrooms are there to be 
maintained?   
 
A71:  TE-C.7-18-WL2 has the building numbers but not the number of bathrooms.  Square 
footage is included in the RPAF (TE C.7-15-WL).  Assume at least 1 Male/1 Female per 
building based on the building numbers on the TE.  Data is not available for square footage of 
tile and carpeting, etc.   
 
Q72:  Reference C.7.2.11 Electrical Systems Services. How many of each of the various 
electrical demarcation points are there?  
 
A72:  TE C.7-22-SPEC defines the lines of demarcation (only one) to show the contractor what 
they will be responsible for in performance of the ISS contract.  
 
Q73:  Reference C.6.1 Mail Services. How many delivery points are required per day? Are there 
any off-site points for delivery and if so where are they?   
 
A73:  There are no delivery points.  Central Mail Room is co-located with USPS in the same 
building so the mail room personnel retrieve incoming and deliver outgoing mail across the hall.  
All other “deliveries” are into the mailboxes at the Post Office.  Customers pick up their mail 
from their boxes or from the window. 
 
Q74:  Reference  Background Information, PWS C.1.4 at pg 7, PWS C.1.4 indicates some work 
will be performed at Off-Site locations to include Barstow-Daggett, approximately 34 miles 
south west of Fort Irwin, and a minor amount of facility maintenance to be performed at a 
location in Barstow. Are these facilities on Federal Property or will it be necessary to have a 
California State Contractor License to perform work at these locations?   
 
A74:  The successor contractor will be required to perform services at both Fort Irwin and 
Barstow-Daggett.   It is incumbent upon offerors to determine any state licensing requirements to 
perform services at these locations. 
 
Q75:  Reference : Outgoing Official Mail, PWS 6.2.1.f at pg 81,  Does the Government provide 
any vehicles and/or other equipment for the Contractor to “deliver” mail to the USPS?   
 
A75:  The Central Mail Room is co-located in the same building as the USPS.  Delivery is across 
the hall.  No vehicles are required.  Carts are provided by the USPS. 
 
Q76:  Reference Garrison Operations Center, PWS C.5.1.1.h at pg 76, PWS states, “Assist the 
Information Management Officer (IMO) and other Government personnel as directed by the 
COR and DPTMS in local or remote conferences and video-teleconferences.”  What is the 
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location of remote conferences and video-teleconferences, e.g. inside the GOC, IOC, EOC, or 
Post VTC Conference Center?    
 
A76:  GOC, IOC - Bldg 237 only. 
 
Q77:  Reference Garrison Operations Center, PWS C.5.1 at pg 75 and Attachment 6, GFP 
Listing at pg 89, What is the contractor’s responsibility with regard to the Web-EOC software, 
e.g. software maintenance, version upgrades, etc?   
 
A77:  The Contractor is not responsible for maintaining Web based programs. 
 
Q78:  Garrison Operations Center, PWS C.5.1 at pg 75 and pg 166, The GOC is a 24x7 
operation, yet the GOC Workload limits manhours to less than 2 personnel around the clock.  Is 
the contractor allowed to leave the GOC unstaffed for periodic times during a shift to allow for 
meal and restroom breaks or must a person be present at all times?   
 
A78:  The GOC must be manned at all times.  The Not to Exceed manhours referenced in 
Section C.12 has been changed to an estimate. 
 
Q79:  Personal Mail Services, PWS C.6.3.h at pg 83., We are unable to find any workload 
concerning this FFP requirement in the PWS or TE.  Will the government please provide:  
 
Q79a:  How many Government Personnel are to be trained each quarter?  

A79a:  Government personnel/unit mailroom appointees are to be trained as needed  based on 
turnover/reassignment of personnel, therefore a specific amount cannot be provided. 
 
Q79b:  How many sessions each year are required to meet turnover in Government personnel 
performing Unit duties?  
 
A79b:  Minimum, once a quarter. 
 
Q79c:  Will Government Personnel be fully qualified IAW DoD Postal Regulations and AR 600-
8-3 (possess SECRET clearance, etc) before commencement of testing, certification or training?  
 
A79c:  Yes, Government personnel/unit mailroom appointees must be fully qualified and 
officially appointed on a memorandum before obtaining training and testing. 
 
Q79d:  Since Unit Troop Mail Rooms are vastly diverse in size and scope to the Central Mail 
Room, is the 30-day period of supervised OJT to be completed by the contractor at the Unit 
Troop Mail Rooms or the Central Mail Room?  
 
A79d:  The 30-day on-the-job (OJT) training is conducted within unit mailrooms by existing unit 
mailroom appointees and is supervised by the Unit Mailroom Postal Officer, not the Central 
Mailroom Postal Officer.  The contractor does not participate in the 30-day OJT period. 
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Q79e:  Can someone other than the UPO perform these requirements?  
 
A79e:  N/A.  See item d. 
 
Q79f:  Should testing be conducted every 30-days to coincide with the 30-day OJT supervision 
requirement vice every two weeks per PRS 6.3.1g?   
 
A79f:  No.  Some testing may be necessary for those that failed the test the first time and need to 
re-test.  Also, for soldiers who arrive to Fort Irwin for rotational training who have been 
identified to serve as Unit Mail Clerks for their brigade. 
 
Q79g:  What training, testing and certifications are to be conducted for rotational units that are 
only available for a compressed time period?  
 
A79g:  Government personnel appointees as part of a rotational unit, normally arrive to Fort 
Irwin with the necessary requirements and DD Form 285 card needed to receive mail from the 
Central Mailroom.  Mail certification requirements are provided to them via email at least 30-
days prior to their arrival to Fort Irwin. Therefore, they are provided with an opportunity to 
prepare for this requirement.    
 
Q79h:  How many rotational unit personnel are required to be trained, tested and certified?   

A79h:  Government personnel on rotation are to be trained prior to their arrival to Fort Irwin.  
Exceptions may occur if personnel become ill and must be reassigned,  therefore  a specific  
amount cannot be provided. 
 
A79i:  Is the rotational unit training, testing, and certifications to be carried out more frequently 
than the quarterly requirement identified in the PWS?   
 
Q79i:  Training for rotational units, if needed,  is usually conducted prior to their arrival to Fort 
Irwin. 
 
Q80:  Inbound Bulk Mail Received, PWS C.6.12 (Anticipated PWS Annual Workload) at pg 
166, Table 6.1 and TE.6-2-WL at pg 7., PWS C.12, Page 166, Table Para 6.1 states inbound bulk 
mail anticipated to be 54,000 a year, yet TE C.6-2-WL at page 7 reflects 2008 Inbound Bulk 
Mail at 55,992, 2009 at 66,683, and 2010 at 60,837 for a 3-yr average of 61,170.   
 
Q80a:  Will the Government please explain the difference in anticipated workload in the PWS 
versus the 3-yr averages provided in the TE?  
 
A80a:  The TE reflects actual workload for past 3 years. The workload provided in C.12 is Fort 
Irwin’s anticipated workload requirement based on projected unit strength. 
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Q80b:  Will the Government also please explain similar disconnects in PWS anticipated 
workload vice TE workload for the following areas: 

a. Inbound Mail 
b. Inbound Special Services 
c. Outbound Mail 
d. Outbound Special Services 
e. Post Locator Telephone Inquiries 
f. Pieces Returned to Post Office 

 
A80b:  Same as answer 80a. above.   
 
Q81:  LPG Storage and Distribution – Operations, PWS, C.7.3.7.2, pg 117, Attachment 2, PRS,  
The PWS identifies a standard that the “Installation receives 100% LPG service without 
unscheduled interruptions and meets required demand” however, no PRS exists in Attachment 2 
for this requirement. Please clarify?   
 
A81:  Not all specific taskings in the PWS are included in the PRS.  However, the contractor is 
required to perform the requirements of the contract in accordance with the PWS. 
 
Q82:  LPG Storage and Distribution – Maintenance & Repair, PWS, C.7.3.8.1 a, pg 117, Are 
family housing gas regulators included in the contractors work scope for distribution system 
regulator inspection, testing, and repair per RPAF and Gas Utility Map?  
 
A82:  The individual family housing gas regulators are not included (they are privatized).  
However, the main distribution to those regulators are required to be maintained by the ISS 
contractor.  Please refer to the Gas Utility Map and TE C.7-12 WL. 
 
Q83:  Vehicle & Weapons Registration, PWS C.8.1 (Vehicle and Weapon Registration) at pg 
138 and PWS C.12.1 at pg 171; and PRS C.8.1.1 at pg 14; and TE C.8-1-WL Page 244, PWS 
C.12, Page 171, states no workload for temporary passes (PWS C.8.1).  
 
Q83a: Does the PRS per customer wait time apply to temporary passes? 
 
A83a: No, the PRS wait time does not apply to temporary passes.    
 
Q83b: Will the Government please provide workload for temporary passes issued?   
 
A83b:  Approximately 36,000 temporary vehicle passes per year and 6,000 permanent vehicle 
and weapons registrations per year.  (information added to C.12) 
 
Q84:  Operate the Emergency Dispatch Center, PWS C.8.4 at pg 142 and C.12.1 Para C.8.4 at pg 
172., PWS C.12 Page 174 lists workload associated with the Emergency Dispatch Center (PWS 
8.4) as 2,000 Emergency Response Incidents per year but does not distinguish workload between 
fire and police.  a. What is the total number of police dispatches (both emergency and non-



Fort Irwin Installation Support Services 
Solicitation W9124B-11-R-0019, Amendment 0003 – Questions & Answers  
 

23 

 

emergency) each year? b. What is the total number of fire/EMS dispatches (emergency and non-
emergency) each year?   
 
A84:  Approximately 3,600 total 911 calls of which 2,400 were fire related and 1,200 were 
police related.  Approximately 24,000 non-emergency calls – 10,000 fire related and 14,000 
police related. 
 
Q85:  Operate the Emergency Dispatch Center, PWS C.8.4.2 at pg 143 and PRS C.8.4, pg 16, 
The PWS identifies 90% standard for Fire and Police personnel certification and training yet the 
PRS standard is listed at 100%.  Please clarify?   
 
A85:  The PRS is correct.  The PWS has been revised accordingly. 
 
Q86:  MEDDAC Special Provisions, PWS C.9.2b at pg 148, PWS C.9.2.b states: “…The 
Government retains the authority to setup and configure hardware and software to comply with 
the operations of the Government LAN and Defense Network System (DNS).”  Will the 
Contractor be permitted to use the Government LAN to access our IT systems via the internet?  
 
A86:  No. 
 
Q87:  Maintain Utilities and Equipment Inventory, PWS C.9.3 at pg 149, PWS C.9.3 states: 
“Contractors shall place a combination Bar Code RFID label on all newly installed and existing 
equipment/components. The Contractor shall maintain a current inventory with data Bar Codes 
on all equipment items being maintained.”  Are the Bar Code RFID labels and Bar Code reader 
devices Government provided?   
 
A87:  Yes, if the Government should move to fully implement this requirement, Bar Codes, 
RFID labels, and readers will be provided by the Government. 
 
Q88:  Crossing Guards, PWS C.12 at pg 172; PWS C.8.2 and C.8.2.1a at pg 139; and TE C.8-2-
WL at pg 249, Workload at PWS C.12 allows a maximum of 3,260 man-hours for crossing 
guards, yet the PWS and TE C.8-2 indicates that 2.5 total hours a day are required for about 180 
days a year at 10 intersections, resulting in well over 3,260 man-hours.  Please explain 
disconnect?   
 
A88:  Direct calculation of the hours shown in TE C.8-2 results in a number of 4,500 hours, 
however, this does not account for the half days, spring break, Christmas break, and several other 
days that school is not in session as determined by the school district each year. Therefore, based 
on historical data, the 3,260 hours found in C.12 is a more accurate estimate for the actual 
workload.  PWS was updated. 
  
Q89:  IDS Accounts/Number of Buildings Containing Fire Systems/IDS Systems, PWS C.12 
Anticipated PWS Annual Workload for Section C.8.5 at pg 172, In reviewing C.12.1 Specific 
Requirements for Paragraph C.8.5, the estimated workload (Annual Total or Number of Items) 
did not include the number of IDS accounts or number of buildings which contain Fire 
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System/IDS Systems or the total # of devices (by type of sensor) in order to properly estimate 
this FFP work.  a. Will the Government please provide the applicable workload? b. What is the 
workload for sprinklers, e.g. type of systems (deluge, wet pipe, dry pipe, # of pumps, 
manufacturer, etc as all require different levels of PM for this FFP work)? 
 
A89:  This level of detail is not available.  However, Offerors shall use the workload data 
provided in Section C.12 (C.8.1 through C.8.5) of the PWS and TEs C.8-1, C.8-2, and C.8-3 to 
develop their FFP proposals for the DES function. 
  
Q90:  RFP Attachment 3, TE C.5-1-SPEC at pg 5 and GFP Listing at pg 89, Some 
equipment/property identified in TE C.5-1 is not included in GFP identified at Attachment 6 and 
vice versa.  Will the Government please identify what GFE/P will be provided to offerors for the 
GOC, e.g. COMSEC equipment for SIPRNET, VTC Equipment the contractor is required to 
operate, GSA Approved Safe for Secret material, Multi Zone Clock, STU-III, etc?   
 
A90:  This is a new functional requirement and therefore equipment required has not yet been 
determined, however, equipment will be provided as GFP.   
 

Q91:  RFP Attachment 3, TE C.7-3-SPEC (f) at pg 26.,  Is the contractor responsible for the 
sewage collection/distribution system or treatment plant?   
 
A91:  No.  TE C.7-3 (f) has now been deleted. 
 
Q92:  RFP Attachment 3, TE C.7-8-WL at pg 38, The reference provides historical service 
orders but does not provide indication of service orders backlog. a. Is there a service orders 
backlog? b. If so please provide service orders backlog by PWS sections and shops.   
 
A92:  Yes, there is a backlog of minimal proportion. This level of detail is not available.   
 
Q93:  Site Visit and Maneuver Trails, Surfaced and Un-surfaced Areas, PWS C.7.3.6.1.f at pg 
114, Solar operated cross walks and lights, including embedded roadway lights appear to be 
newly installed throughout the installation:  a. Do solar power cross walk and lights require any 
specialized training? b. Are O&M manuals available in the technical library for these new 
devices?   
 
A93:  No special training is required.  O&M Manuals for the lighted crosswalks are in the 
Technical Library. O&M  Manuals for the solar lights will be in the technical library upon 
completion of this phased installation project, anticipated to be completed in October 2011.  In 
addition, further information is readily available from various commercials and industry sources. 
 
Q94:  Site Visit and Construction and Demolition Debris, PWS C.7.4.1.3.1.i at pg 126, C.12 at 
pg 171, and RFP Attachment 3, TE C.7-27-WL at pg 232, We are unable to locate any workload 
associated with Construction and Demolition Debris and given the large amount of construction 
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seen during the site visit, it would appear that this workload may be significant.  Will the 
Government please provide workload data for C&D?   
 
A94:  Construction and Demolition is not part of the ISS contract.   
 
Q95:  Site Visit and Generators, RFP Attachment 3, TE C.7-7-WL at pg 36, Buildings 5506 and 
7721 are listed in TE without any indication as to number, size/type of generator in these 
facilities. Building 15009 reflects one generator vice two as noted during the site visit.  Will the 
Government please provide data?   
 
A95:  These buildings (facilities) were not visited during the site visit.  Generators on TE C.7-7-
WL will be the responsibility of the contractor.  All are identified in the TE.  If additional 
generators are located at these facilities and are not on the TE, then they are not the contractor’s 
responsibility at this time. 
 
Q96:  Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/compliance/whdfs8.pdf, 
Does the provision of section 7(k), as referenced in the FLSA, for Fire Protection Employee 
overtime exemption from The Fair Labor Standards Act apply to PWS C.8.3?  
 
A96: Firefighter overtime is covered by the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act.  
Reference FAR/DFARS/AFARS Part 22.3 and clause 52.222-4 Contract Work Hours and Safety 
Standards Act -- Overtime Compensation which is incorporated into the solicitation. 
 
Q97: RFP Attachment 8, CBA, The applicable wage determination is attached as Local 166, but 
we also understand that there is a separate CBA wage determination for Landfill Operations.   
Will the Government provide this CBA so offerors have all applicable wage determinations?   
 
A97:  See Q&A 14 and revised Section J. 
 
Q98:  RFP Attachment 8, CBA, We understand that the  incumbent workforce is predominantly 
comprised of union workers that have five or more years of longevity on the contract. According 
to the union agreement, as workers progress in longevity their wages and benefits entitlements 
increase (benefits such as accrued vacation allowance significantly increases which impacts total 
productive hours of employees).   
 
Q98a: Since all bidders will focus on retention of incumbent employees for smooth transition 
and uninterrupted service, would the Government publish general information on longevity 
entitlements for the Fort Irwin workforce to avoid any first period cost over-run/under-runs?  
 
A98a:  The information that the Government is authorized to provide is in the attached CBAs.  
The obligation of the successor contractor is limited to the wage and fringe benefit requirements 
of the predecessor’s collective bargaining agreement and does not extend to other terms/ 
conditions of the CBA such as seniority, work rules, overtime, etc.  In accordance with FAR 
52.222-41(n) a seniority list will be provided to the successor contractor at commencement of 
award.   

http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/compliance/whdfs8.pdf�
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Q98b:  If not, will the Government provide an Equitable Adjustment to the successful bidder 
upon contract start? 
 
A98b: The Government will not provide an Equitable Adjustment upon contract start.  It is the 
responsibility of each offeror to determine and propose all costs necessary to perform the 
requirements of the PWS in compliance with all applicable labor laws for the staffing/workforce 
they are proposing for this effort. 
 
Q99:  RFP Attachment 3, TE C.7-8-WL, The Barracks Maintenance data shows no workload 
data for FY 08 and FY 09.  Does the FY 10 data as presented in the table reflect an entire year of 
PM Service Calls?   
 
A99:  Ft Irwin has 18 barracks.  Offerors shall propose to perform preventive maintenance on 18 
barracks in accordance with their anticipated maintenance schedule.  
 
Q100:  RFP Attachment 3, TE C.7-8-WL,  The HVAC Appliances data went from an average of 
475 PM Service orders in FY 08 and 09 to 7764 SCs in FY 10.  Would the Government please 
validate this data.   
 
A100:  Workload data for FY10 of 7,764 SOs is accurate.  Please refer to Section C.12 
 
Q101:  RFP Attachment 3, TE C.7-8-WL,  The Pest Control line went from 1 PM in FY08 to 
2733 PMs FY 10.   Would the Government please validate this data.   
 
A101:  Workload data for FY 10 of 2,733 PMs is accurate.  Please refer to Section C.12. 
 
Q102:  Ref: Page 88, (c) Volume III, d. Dollar value and percentage of total contract value of 
subcontracts planned for…Large, Total Small, Small Non-Disadvantaged Small Disadvantaged 
Small Woman Owed, Small HubZone, Small Veteran Owned, Small Service Disabled. Each 
percentage above shall be accompanied by detailed supporting documentation regarding 
individual commitments. Question: Does the Government have a set of goals in dollars and/or 
percentages to be applied to this solicitation that we have seen in other RFP’s  or does the 
contractor set appropriate goals set forth by the company? Please Clarify. 
 
A102:  See Q&A15(a) and revised Section L Paragraph C.3(c).  DoD goals have been added to 
Section L (Tab B) and apply to the Small Business Subcontracting Plan.  For the Small Business 
Participation Plan, Offerors shall propose targets deemed appropriate by the company. 
 
Q103:  Ref: Page 89, first full paragraph, second sentence: “Detailed explanations shall also be 
provided when the percentage falls short of the goals identified in Section M of the solicitation.” 
Question: Page 100, Section M, Factor 3: Small Business Participation Plan does not provide 
goals. Would the Government please provide the goals for utilization in Volume III? 
 
A103:  See Q&A102 above and revised Section L Paragraph C.3(c).   
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Q104:  Ref: RFP page 95, Tab G-Section K. The offeror shall ensure that Section K is submitted 
thoroughly completed with all blocks in each certification/representation completed truthfully 
and completely. Question: Would the Government consider allowing the Contractor to submit a 
complete ORCA document? 
 
A104:  See FAR 52.204-8 Annual Representations and Certifications (Jan 2011)  and DFARs 
252.204-7007 Alternate A, Annual Representations and Certifications (May 2010) incorporated 
in Section K of the solicitation. 
 
Q105:  Ref: Volume II, TAB 5 – Past Performance Questionnaire. For all contracts identified in 
TAB 1, Past Performance Questionnaires must be completed and submitted. TAB 3 –Offerors 
shall provide past performance information for each subcontractor, that is relevant (and recent) 
for the effort that is proposed to be performed by that subcontractor.  Question:  Regarding Tab 
1, Tab 3 and Tab 5 instructions exactly where does the Government want Subcontractor Relevant 
contract information? Is it to be placed in Tab 1 or is Tab 1 only for the Prime offerors relevant 
contract information? Is Tab 3 only for subcontractor relevant information? Does the 
Government want the same description information required to be provided in Tab 1 but not 
identified in Tab 3 for Subcontractor relevant contract information? Please clarify. 
 
A105:  TAB 1 is for Past Performance information relative to the Prime.  TAB 3 is for Past 
Performance information relative to proposed major subcontractors.  In TAB 3 Offerors shall 
provide the same information for proposed major subcontractors as is required in TAB 1 for the 
Prime.  TAB 5 is applicable to both the Prime and proposed major Subcontractors. 
 
Q106:  Ref:  CBA, page 68, section 30.02.00 “The company will pay the cost of the California 
State Disability Insurance except for employees hired on or after February 1, 1993.” Question: 
Will the Government please clarify how many employees are covered by this clause that the 
offeror pays disability insurance for so that all offerors may have the same information? 
 
A106:  The information that we are authorized to provide is in the attached CBAs.  It is the 
responsibility of each offeror to determine and propose all costs necessary to perform the 
requirements of the PWS in compliance with all applicable laws for the staffing/workforce they 
are proposing for this effort. 
 
Q107:  Ref: CBA, page 71, section 30.10.00 regarding married member of the bargaining unit, 
Question: Will the Government disclose how many married couples are currently in the 
bargaining unit so that all offerors may bid on the premium information? 
 
A107:  See Q&A 106. 
 
Q108:  Vacation and paid personal time off is based on seniority. Will the Government provide a 
seniority schedule so that all offerors may bid on the same level of knowledge? 
 
A108:  See Q&A 98a. 
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Q109:  PWS Section 4. Will the Contractor be allowed to fuel Contractor Furnished Equipment 
and Vehicles through Government on-base facilities on a reimbursable basis?  If not, will the 
Contractor be allowed to establish an above-ground fuel farm on base so Contractor Furnished 
Equipment and Vehicles can be regularly refueled without having to be taken off base?  
 
A109:  Fuel keys are provided for GFP and CFP used in performance of the contract.   
 
Q110:  PWS Section 4.  “The Contractor will be reimbursed for all supplies, materials, and repair 
parts furnished in support of this contract provided all required approvals have been received and 
purchases made IAW the Contractor’s approved Purchase Plan… The Contractor shall initiate 
and submit, without prior Property Administrator approval when funding is available, routine 
purchase requests for the following types of supplies/material. Day-to-day supplies for items 
such as expendable office supplies (copy paper, printer cartridges, etc.), vehicle registration 
renewal fees, expendable shop supplies (welding rods, etc.), and other expendable (gloves, first 
aid supplies, etc.).”  Are these clauses to mean that the Government will reimburse through the 
appropriate cost-reimbursable CLINs all repair parts, materials, shop supplies, office supplies, 
etc. used to support the contract work?  Do the costs in these line items also include operations 
and maintenance costs for Contractor-Furnished vehicles and equipment used to perform work 
on the contract (i.e., work trucks for craftspeople)?   
 
A110:  See Q&A 10 for what is reimbursable under the Estimated Materials CLINs and revisions 
to PWS Section C.4.4.  See also Q&A 59. 
 
Q111:  PWS Section C.7.1.1.  “The Contractor shall provide any software (other than GFEBS) 
required to develop and maintain the LCM program…[a]ll LCM software and all LCM 
generated data during the life of the contract shall become Government property at completion of 
the contract.”  Will the Government provide LCM generated data from the current contractor to 
the incoming contractor that may be deemed vital to current operations and maintenance of 
Government facilities?   
 
A111:  No - Offerors shall propose their approach to LCM in their Mission Capability proposal 
under the Management and Organization Subfactor. 
 
Q112:  PWS Section C.7.1.1.3.  “The Contractor shall develop a process to manage the service 
order system using the GFEBS software system as a base.”  Is Fort Irwin currently using GFEBS 
as the sole DPW data management system in lieu of IFS?   If not, what is the currently 
anticipated date of switchover from IFS to GFEBS?   
 
A112:  Fort Irwin is scheduled to transition to GFEBS on October 1, 2011.  Please refer to Q&A 
9. 
 
Q113:  PWS Section C.7.1.1.3.  “The Contractor shall develop a process to manage the service 
order system using the GFEBS software system as a base.”  Is Fort Irwin currently using GFEBS 
and IFS in dual-entry mode (e.g., during switchover and shakedown of GFEBS for Fort Irwin-
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specific procedures)?  If so, when did dual-entry mode begin and what is the currently 
anticipated date of full switchover?   
 
A113:  No, Fort Irwin is only using Maximo.  Upon commencement of the follow-on contract 
the successor contractor will be required to switch over to GFEBS.  Please refer to Q&A 9. 
 
Q114:  PWS Section C.7.1.2.  “The Contractor shall implement GFEBS as the DPW project 
accounting system. GFEBS will provide work identifying numbers.”  Is Fort Irwin currently 
operating GFEBS as the sole DPW project accounting system?  
 
A114:  No, Fort Irwin is currently using Maximo.  Fort Irwin  is scheduled to transition to 
GFEBS on October 1, 2011. 
 
Q115:  PWS Section C.7.1.3.  Will the work control center operators enter data to process work 
requests received into the GFEBS system, with work identifying numbers assigned by GFEBS to 
identify these requests in the system?   
 
A115:  Yes, the contractor will be mandated to use GFEBS.  GFEBS will assign work 
identifying numbers. 
 
Q116:  PWS Section C.7.1.3.2.  “The [work control] center shall remain open 45 hours a week to 
receive walk-in and telephone requests for work and to respond to requests for information or 
status on outstanding and completed work.”  Is the Government’s intent that the work control 
center remain open for 9 hours per day, 5 days per week, or will the Contractor be allowed to set 
other hours of operation (e.g., 8 hours per day 5 days per week plus 5 hours per day on 
Saturday)?   
 
A116:  Core hours are Mon-Fri from 0700-1600 hrs.   
 
Q117:  PWS Section 7.1.4.  “The Contractor shall procure all repair parts and materials 
necessary to maintain proper inventory levels based on demand loads.”  Does the Government 
have a current listing of proper inventory levels required for this contract as of April 1, 2011?  If 
so, would the Government provide offerors with these listings so they may determine the scope 
of taking regular and required inventories?  
 
A117:  No.  The current inventory will be turned over to the successor contract and they will 
need to determine the appropriate stocking levels to efficiently and properly implement their 
LCM.   
 
Q118:  PWS Section 7.1.4.1.  “[The contractor shall] Operate a limited self-help program 
(managed through the parts warehouse) for issue of common use items as approved by the 
Government.”  Will common use items for the self-help program be Government-furnished or 
Contractor-furnished?   
 
A118:  Contractor will maintain warehouse and purchase materials on a cost reimbursable basis.   
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Q119:  PWS Section 7.1.4.  Are operations of the parts warehouse currently managed through 
GFEBS?  If not, does the Government have a currently anticipated date for switchover to 
GFEBS?   
 
A119:  No.  Fort Irwin is scheduled to transition to GFEBS on October 1, 2011. 
 
Q120:  PWS Section 7.1.5.  Since most excess parts and materials will occur from reductions to 
anticipated workload and/or replacement of specific items, will excess parts and materials sent to 
DLADS be credited against the cost of parts and materials purchased for the materials 
SUBCLINs (e.g., certain required parts and materials for specific items eventually being 
replaced by new models not requiring the parts fitting old models)?   
 
A120:  No. 
 
Q121:  Section 7.2.2.  Will the Government provide hardware and software to perform tasks 
under this section, or will such items be the responsibility of the Contractor?     
 
A121:  No.  The Government will not provide hardware or software. 
 
Q122:  Section 7.3.1.1.  Will the Government provide a list of furnishings normally present in 
the typical Fort Irwin UPH unit?   
 
A122:  Bed, Mattress, Dresser, Refrigerator, Microwave, End Table, Lamp, Desk and Chair.  
 
Q123:  Section 7.3.1.1.  “The Contractor shall…[h]ave surge capability to issue and turn-in 
furnishings for up to seventy (70) UPH rooms.”  Will the Contractor be provided sufficient 
storage space to store these furnishings?   
 
A123:  Yes.  
 
Q124:  Section 7.3.1.1.  “The Contractor shall accomplish a complete barracks furniture 
exchange two to three (2-3) times per year. For each barracks building, a full furniture 
replacement shall be accomplished within one week.”  Will the Government provide a full 
furniture inventory (items in use in barracks buildings and items warehoused) so offerors may 
determine the scope of this effort?   
 
A124:  Yes – See Q&A 122.  70 rooms on average with adjustments as needed. 
 
Q125:  Section 7.3.1.1.  “The Contractor shall accomplish a complete barracks furniture 
exchange two to three (2-3) times per year. For each barracks building, a full furniture 
replacement shall be accomplished within one week.”  Does sufficient furniture inventory 
currently exist in warehouse storage to allow such exchanges? Who is responsible for the 
purchase of furniture? Is it purchased from cost reimbursable CLIN or is it contractor 
responsibility to price in this furniture exchange? Please clarify.   
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A125:  The Government will purchase as needed. 
 
Q126:  Section 7.3.4.3.  Will the Government provide further information regarding facilities to 
be cleaned by custodial personnel, by building, as follows: Approximate ratio of carpet to hard 
tile; Number of restroom facilities; Number of floors.   
 
A126:  TE-C.7-18-WL2 has the building numbers but not the number of bathrooms.  Square 
footage is included in the RPAF (TE C.7-15-WL).  Assume at least 1 Male/1 Female per 
building based on the building numbers on the TE.  Square footage for tile vs. carpeting is not 
available.   
 
Q127:  Section 7.3.6. Will the Government provide an approximate survey of the amount of 
surfaced area fences (e.g., LF or LMi) in the cantonment area to be maintained by the 
Contractor?   
 
A127:  There is approximately 200 linear miles of fencing (chain link, wooden, metal rotational 
unit fencing, and ornamental) within the cantonment area, and approximately 58 linear miles of 
tortoise fencing outside the cantonment area, to be maintained as described in PWS Section 
7.3.6. 
 
Q128:  Section 7.3.6.  Will the Government provide a listing of all traffic warning and signal 
lights to be maintained by the Contractor?   
 
A128:  Data is not currently available to that level of detail, however the installation has 1 set of 
regular traffic lights, 11 flashing LED warning signals and 8 LED lighted crosswalks. 
 
Q129:  Section 7.3.6.  Will the Government provide a listing of all school crosswalks to be 
maintained by the Contractor?   
 
A129:  Please refer to TE C.8-2-WL however, this is not inclusive, there are several that are not 
currently tracked.   
 
Q130:  Section 7.3.6.  Will the Government provide a listing of all cross walk school zone 
flashing lights, including both solar power and standard electrical, to be maintained by the 
Contractor?   
 
A130:  TE C.8-2-WL  provides school crossing zones.  Additional data is not available.    
 
Q131:  Section 7.3.6.  Will the Government provide actual square footage of airfield pavement, 
airfield unpaved areas, and helipad areas to be maintained by the Contractor?   
 
A131:  3 AC Barstow-Daggett (Paved); 7 AC at Dirt Helo Parking area at Highwater; 3 AC Dirt 
helo parking at Low water.  Airfields Dirt runway at BL = 65 AC; BL Taxiway 4 AC; Base 
Helopad 9AC (Paved). 
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Q132:  Section 7.2.7.1 and Section 7.3.6.  Will the Government provide details (e.g., number of 
lights) on airfield pavement lighting and helipad lighting to be maintained by the Contractor? 
 
A132:  This data is not available.  However, Section C.12 provides the number of manhours 
required. 
 
Q133:  Section 7.2.7.1.  Will the Government provide details on the number of grounding points 
and lightning protection systems to be maintained by the Contractor?   
 
A133:  This data is not available.  However, Section C.12 provides the number of manhours 
required. 
 
Q134:  Section 7.3.6.  Will the Government provide mileage of paved/concrete roads to be 
maintained by the Contractor?  
 
A134:  Approximately 100 miles of paved road consisting of asphalt and/or concrete.   
 
Q135:  Section 7.3.6.  Will the Government provide information on vehicular bridges, 
overpasses or underpasses to be maintained by the contractor to include number, lanes, length 
and construction type?   
 
A135:  There are a total of 16 bridges, 2 lanes, 80 feet maximum in length.  The ISS contractor 
will not be responsible for performing any structural maintenance on these bridges. 
 
Q136:  Section 7.3.6.  Will the Government provide information on railroad trackage, e.g., 
mileage, number of switches, number of road crossings, railroad bridges, crossing lights, to be 
maintained by the Contractor?   
 
A136:  There are no railroad tracks on Fort Irwin.  PWS has been updated to remove all 
references to “railroad”.   
 
Q137:  Section 7.4.1.3.1, TE C.7‐26‐WL.  The former states that refuse services will be provided 
Monday through Friday, but several entries in the latter show pickups listed as “DAILY”.  Is this 
to mean Monday through Friday only, or will offerors be required to staff refuse services to 
perform some pickups on weekends as well as the required Monday through Friday schedule?   
 
A137:  "DAILY" means Monday through Friday.  Any week-end pick-up would be by 
exception. 
 
Q138:  Section C.7.4.1.3.1, Section 7.4.1.4.1.  The former states that the Contractor shall pickup 
refuse and recycling materials only from Government provided containers, while the latter states 
that the Contractor shall provide sufficient recycling containers at each facility.  Does this mean 
that the Government will supply containers for refuse and recycling, and that the Contractor will 
ensure sufficient recycling containers are placed at each facility for collection?   
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A138:  Yes. 
 
Q139:  Section 8.3.1.  “…nine (9) are required to be Firefighter/Paramedic (FF/Para) certified. A 
total of three (3) FF/Para will be assigned as follows: One per fire station (2 total) and one 
FF/Para at the Air Ambulance Detachment to act as Flight Paramedic.”  Is this to mean that three 
(3) FF/Para will be assigned to an 8-hour shift, for a total of nine per day?   
 
A139:  The Contractor is responsible for proposing manning levels to meet the Government’s 
requirement. See Q&A 64.  Paramedic capability is required on Fort Irwin only and is not 
required at Barstow Daggett Fire Station.  PWS has been updated. 
 
Q140:  Section C.9.1.1.  The only MEDDAC equipment listed in the Technical Exhibits appears 
to be heating, hot water, and HVAC; other equipment normally supported in such a facility, such 
as the medical gas, air and vacuum systems, are not included.  Will the Government provide a 
listing of all medical and dental facilities, equipment, and installed building systems comprising 
MEDDAC facilities for which the Contractor is responsible?  Is the Contractor responsible for 
maintaining medical and dental diagnostic and treatment equipment (i.e., x-ray machines, dental 
chairs/tool systems, etc.), and if so, would the Government list this equipment?   
 
A140:  Contractor is responsible for heating, hot water, HVAC and general maintenance of the 
facilities.  All other/specialized equipment is covered under separate contracts. 
 
Q141:  Section 8.4.  Does the separate listing of fire dispatch and police dispatch mean that it is 
the intent of the Government that the Contractor operate two separate dispatch centers with at 
least one dispatcher each, to operate one dispatch center with at least two dispatchers (one police 
and one fire), or to operate one dispatch center with at least one dispatcher providing police and 
fire dispatching?  
  
A141:  There are two distinctly different operational requirements (Police and Fire Dispatch) that 
are conducted in one location/dispatch center.  Offerors are required to propose their staffing 
approach in their Mission Capability proposal to demonstrate successful performance of this 
function, as well as all other PWS requirements. 
 
Q142:  TE C.7-8-WL.  The Government has provided Service Orders and Preventive 
Maintenance historical data by item count.  However, the number of hours applicable to any 
individual Service Order or Preventive Maintenance order can range from less than one hour to 
more than 30; such a wide range can place offerors in the position of “guess-timating” average 
Service Order or Preventive Maintenance times required and, therefore, the Government could 
receive from several offerors a wide range of productive hours required to execute item counts 
that may or may not be representative of actual hours used.  To ensure all offerors are operating 
from the same basic assumptions regarding historical workload, will the Government provide 
hours associated with the Service Orders by category and Preventive Maintenances performed as 
shown in this table for FY08, FY09 and FY10?    
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A142:  This level of detail is not available.  Offerors shall use data provided in C.12 for 
estimating purposes.   
 
Q143:  TE C.8-3-WL.  Will the Government provide further information on the number of 
smoke detectors, fire/smoke detectors, heat detectors, smoke detectors, and pull stations included 
in the inventory that must be tested regularly? 
 
A143:  This level of detail is not available. See TE C.8-3-WL 
 
Q144:  TE C.8-3-WL.  Will the Government provide information on the number and location of 
any fire extinguishers included in the building inventories? 
 
A144:  The Fire Department services approximately 100 hand held fire extinguishers per month 
(1,200 per year).  PWS C.12 has been updated. 
 
Q145:  The family of Sustained Management Software developed by University of Illinois-
Champaign has been adopted and is now primarily available through the Army Corps of 
Engineers.  As a result, the single-function programs cited in the PWS (e.g., Builder, Roofer, 
Scaler) are no longer available commercially to private-party offerors. 
 
A145:  The family of Sustained Management Software consists of BUILDER, PAVER, RAILER 
and ROOFER, and is available to non-federal agencies for a fee through this website 
www.inflectionnetwork.com. 
 
Q146:  The Government is requesting detailed pricing breakdown from subcontractors over 
$100,000.  If this is a total contract amount, it could result in enormous pricing volumes, since 
$20,000 per year is well below 0.5 FTE.  If this is an annual amount (e.g., $500,000 over the life 
of the contract), it would at least require that a subcontractor would have to supply 2.0 FTE in 
order to be required to provide detailed pricing.  Will the Government clarify the minimum limit 
for subcontractor detailed pricing as $500,000 per contract, $100,000 per contract, or other limit 
on a contract (rather than a yearly) basis? 
 
A146:  See Q&A 56. 
 
Q147:  Ref: TE. C.7-8-WL, Would the Government please explain the 30% increase in SO/PM 
work for FY10 in comparison to FY08 and FY09? Does the Government anticipate that future 
FY’s will have similar SO/PM workload as FY10 or will it be more similar to FY08 and FY09?  
This is critical to all offerors to know and understand so that an accurate baseline can be 
established to support the stated work. Please clarify.   
 
A147:  During FY10 a more comprehensive method of data collection was instituted resulting in 
better workload data.  Offerors shall use C.12 data for proposal preparation purposes. 
 

http://www.inflectionnetwork.com/�
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Q148:  There does not appear to be a SCA Wage determination attached to the solicitation that 
would cover non-union non-exempt employees.  Would the government please identify the 
appropriate Wage Determination that will be incorporated into this contract?  
 
A148:  See Q&A 14. 
 
Q149:  Article 30.02.00 of the CBA states:  “The Company will pay the cost of the California 
State Disability Insurance except for employees hired on or after February 1, 1993.”  Will the 
government release a seniority list so that the offeror can determine what cost will be associated 
with this clause? 
 
A149:  The information that we are authorized to provide is in the attached Collective 
Bargaining Agreements (CBAs).  It is the responsibility of each offeror to determine non-
productive cost elements in their proposals based on the staffing/workforce they are proposing 
for this effort.  In accordance with FAR 52.222-41(n) a seniority list will be provided to the 
successor contractor at commencement of award. 
 
Q150:  Reference: Section L: Paragraph C. - Proposal Preparation Instructions, paragraph (iii), 
page 84 - Section states, “…digital copies shall be provided on CD-ROM disk in Microsoft 
Word, PowerPoint and/or Excel.” Question: Are .pdf files acceptable in instances where 
documents have signatures or other proprietary data, i.e., cover letters, SF 33, Representations & 
Certifications, etc.? 
 
A150:  Yes. 
 
Q151:  Section L.C.3(d)/TAB E.  Neither the Labor Hours Matrix nor the Summary Roll-Up 
provide columns for overtime hours or costs.  Where overtime hours and pay are often required 
(e.g., Emergency Services), may offerors add in the hours and costs for anticipated overtime, 
particularly anticipated overtime due to required shift lengths exceeding State of California labor 
law and/or current CBA agreements regarding straight time maximum limits per 
workday/workweek? 
 
A151:  Yes, offerors should include all the hours and wage rates, to include overtime if required, 
that comprise their proposed firm fixed price(s).  Offerors are allowed to tailor the Direct Labor 
Table(s) to adequately represent their proposal based on their individual approach.   
 
Q152:  Section B.  Is it the intent of the Government that all IJO hours be lumped and priced in 
together with FFP work in a single CLIN item?  If so, this would require separate tracking and 
pricing of IJO work within the CLINs, since pricing and billing of labor are costed and billed on 
different bases.  The lumping together of two price bases with distinct differences in their actual 
component makeup (e.g., IJO pricing and reporting deal with only direct labor hours worked, 
while other work items deal with “loaded” labor hours, including hours worked, indirect labor 
hours and supervisory labor hours as labor overhead additives) will adversely impact the 
effectiveness of labor reporting and tracking BSVE by CLIN, as well as interpreting BSVE 
results to allow rapid response for cost control by both the Government and the Contractor.  
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Would the Government consider separating IJO direct labor and material costs into separate 
CLINs or SubCLINs to allow both the Government and the Contractor to simply track and 
invoice IJO work without affecting analysis of scheduled work and service orders? 
 
A152:  IJOs are covered under the DPW function in this requirement.  Accordingly all work 
performed on IJOs will be on a CPFF basis as identified in Schedule B.  However, please see 
Q&A 24 regarding anticipated magnitude for Davis Bacon projects under the ISS contract. 
 

Q153:  Section 7.1.1.4.  Workload for this section is shown as 40,000 hours for IJO work.  Does 
this include time used to scope, draw, and estimate IJO requests from the Government?   
 
A153:  No this is an estimate for the number of hours pertaining to Davis Bacon Projects.  Please 
note that the 40,000 estimated man-hours has been revised to 16,640 estimated man-hours and is 
updated in Section C.12 of the PWS.  Also see Q&A 24. 
 
Q154:  Section 7.1.1.4.  Workload for this section is shown as 40,000 hours for IJO work.  
However, the Government has not provided a breakdown of these hours that all offerors may use 
as a common basis to provide a cost estimate for IJO work.  Would the Government provide a 
breakdown of hours (including hours used for drawing and estimating in response to 
Governmental IJO requests) so all offerors may have a common basis on which to estimate costs 
for anticipated IJO work?   
 
A154:  Please note that the 40,000 estimated man-hours in Section C.12 for Davis Bacon Work 
has been revised to 16,640 estimated man-hours.  For purposes of estimating this work offerors 
shall use the following: Painter – 4,160 hours; Electrician – 4,160 hours; Carpenter – 4,160 
hours; and Plumber – 4,160 hours.  Offerors shall determine appropriate hours and staffing for 
any drawing and estimating requirements, if necessary, to support this function and include in 
their staffing approach in their Mission Capability proposal. 
 
Q155:  Section 7.1.1.4, TE C.7‐2‐SPEC.  Workload for this section is shown as 40,000 hours for 
IJO work.  TE C.7-2 requires costing of Davis-Bacon Act IJO work to include costing of “full 
time clerical or administrative work to these functions.”  Does the stated 40,000 hours include 
clerical and administrative work?  If not, will the Government provide an estimate of clerical and 
administrative work historically used and capable of supporting a 40,000 hour IJO function 
based on the type of work performed at Fort Irwin?  If so, will the Government provide these 
hours as part of the breakdown of the 40,000 estimated IJO work hours by type of work 
required?   
 
A155:  No.  Clerical and administration work is not included in the 40,000 hours (now 16,640 
hours) identified for Davis-Bacon work in Section C.12.  Offerors are required to determine 
appropriate clerical and administrative staffing required to support all the functions of the 
contract and propose accordingly in their Mission Capability proposal.  The successful contractor 
will be required to provide detailed cost estimates for Davis Bacon projects in GFEBS, which 
will include estimating the costs of full time clerical and administrative support.  
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Q156:  No union wage rate is shown for Crossing Guards required to fulfill this function.  Is this  
to mean that Crossing Guards are non-union employees?  If not, will the Government provide the 
union position to which Crossing Guards are conformed to in order that all offerors may bid pay 
rates being currently received, in conformance with the Service Contract Act?   
 
A156:  See Q&A 14. 
 
Q157:  Will the Government provide the applicable Wage Determination for non-exempt SCA 
employees excluded from the union Collective Bargaining Agreement (e.g., confidential 
secretaries, Division and Branch Manager’s secretaries, all Human Resources and Office 
employees, Industrial Security Officer, Purchasing Agents, with the exception of payroll, guards 
and supervisors)? 
 
A157: See Q&A 14. 
 
Q158:  Reference C.7.3.5, Custodial Services, Are the custodians represented by a union? If so, 
who and what are their rates? If not, where is the wage determination to cover custodial  
employees   
 
A158:  See Q&A 14. 
 
Q159:  Reference RFP General, What PWS performance occurs without issuing a service order 
or work request, if any?  The questions does not include administrative activities, management 
reporting, etc.   
 
A159:  Section C.12 references the functional areas of the PWS and indicates whether or not 
services orders are issued for the performance of that function. 
 
Q160:  Reference Section C.12, C.7.1.3, Is the number of work control service orders of 750 
correct? Other C12 information seems to conflict with this amount.   
 
A160:  Yes: The 750 work control SO’s form part of the 41,100 SOs. Information in C.12 
references is correct. 
 
Q161:  Reference PWS Section C.7.3.4, There is not sufficient information in the RFP to 
estimate the manning required. Please provide.   
 
A161:  Inclement Weather – This is an exception and not the norm.  PWS states approximately 5 
such inclement weather related instances per year. 
 
Q162:  Reference PWS C.7.3.2, Landscape Maintenance – Improved, The map provided does 
not show the square yards or acres requiring improved ground maintenance. Please provide.   
 
A162:  See available information on Attachment 17 “Roads and Grounds Info Sheet.” 
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Q163:  Reference PWS TE C.7-8 WL, Heavy Equipment (Roads/Trls), What type of work is 
performed by PM?   
 
A163:  Please refer to PWS Section C.7.3.6 .  
 
Q164:  Reference C.1.11.2 b.  How many work orders annually are expected to exceed $1,000.00 
in total cost, thereby requiring a LCC analysis?  Please clarify.   
 
A164:  This level of detail is not available.  Life Cycle Cost analysis is not limited to work orders 
over $1,000.  This analysis is to be included as a routine process in implementing the entire LCM 
program for facilities and equipment covered under this contract.   
 
Q165:  Reference C.1.26.  “The contractor will be required to reimburse the government for any 
government provided training.”  Inasmuch as government training may be required for new 
equipment or systems introduced on the base as well as for a host of other reasons, estimating 
this requirement is, to say the least, nothing more than a guess since there is no historical 
information or other data on which to base a reasonable estimate.  Please provide historical data 
or a basis to make a reasonable training cost estimate. In addition, the DPW function is CPFF.  
Must DPW government-provided training be reimbursed to the Government?  Please clarify. 
 
A165:  Basic user training on government unique systems will be provided at the designated 
work space as part of the normal operations.  Any additional/specialized training for contractor 
personnel will not be paid by the government.  If the government provides such training, the 
Contractor must reimburse the government on a pro-rata basis.  Historical information is not 
available.   
 
Q166:  3. Reference C.1.10.2.  The paragraph numbering skips the referenced paragraph.  Is 
something missing here or is this simply an oversight?  Please clarify. 
 
A166:  Oversight. PWS has been revised.  
 
Q167:  4. Reference TE-C.3-2-GFP (Attachment 3).  The statement on the TE page indicates the 
TE is in EXCEL format, but no data is listed on the page or subsequent pages.  Attachment 6 
appears to be the GFP listing.  Is this correct.  Is Attachment 6 the data referred to in TE-C.3-2-
GFP?  Please clarify. 
 
A167:  Yes. See Attachment 6, TE C.3-2-GFP. Attachment 6 is provided as a pdf file for posting 
purposes. 
 
Q168:  Reference C.8.3.1 a (2) and TE-3.1-GFE.  The referenced paragraph indicates there are 
two fire stations the contractor must operate (staff) plus assign a paramedic to the air ambulance 
attachment.  The TE indicates there are 3 fire stations that must be operated by the contractor, 
one of which is in Barstow.  Is the contractor responsible for operating fire stations 1 and 2 (plus 
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the assigned paramedic) only or is the contractor responsible for operating (i.e., staffing) all three 
fire stations?  Please clarify. 
 
A168:  See Q&A 64. 
 
Q169:  Reference C.8.3.1 1 (2).  Is the paramedic assigned to the Air Ambulance Detachment a 
24/7/365 assignment?  Please clarify. 
 
A169:  The Firefighter/Paramedic at Air Ambulance is a 24/7/365 assignment. 
 
Q170:  Reference C.8.3.1. a) It is our interpretation that 24 qualified fire fighters must be at work 
on each shift.  Is this interpretation correct?  Please clarify. b) Do the 24 fire fighters staff fire 
stations A & B or A, B & C?  Please clarify. c) An assigned paramedic is required in stations A 
and B 24/7.  The assigned paramedics at stations A and B are included in the 24 fire fighter 
headcount.  Is this interpretation correct?  Please clarify. d) A paramedic is assigned to the Air 
Ambulance Detachment.  This paramedic is included in the 24 fire fighter headcount.  Is this 
interpretation correct?  Please clarify. e) Assistant chiefs are assigned to and direct the activities 
at each station.  The assistant chiefs are included in the 24 fire fighter headcount.  Is this 
interpretation correct?  Please clarify. f) Are the current fire station shifts operated as 24-on, 24-
off?  Please clarify current shift operations.   
 
A170:  See Q&A 64.  At any one time, there is a requirement for a Battalion Chief, one flight 
paramedic, 3 Aircraft Rescue Firefighters and 12 Structural Firefighters (that includes 2 
FF/Paramedics). 
 
Q171:  Reference C.7.3.5 and Attachment 8.  Custodial wages are not covered by the CBA 
provided as Attachment 8.  Is there a separate CBA or SCA wage determination that covers the 
custodial work force?  Please clarify.   
 
A171: See Q&A 14. 
 
Q172:  Reference CLIN 0010.  The referenced CLIN provides for materials and supplies for the 
DES.  Are routine services such as ladder weight testing and x-rays, jaws-of-life x-rays, and the 
many other OSHA and NFPA testing and certification requirements for firefighting apparatus 
and personal protective equipment reimbursable under this CLIN?  Please clarify.  
 
A172:  Routine testing and x-ray and OSHA and NFPA testing and certification requirements 
should be proposed and priced in the FFP CLIN and corresponding option CLINS.  Any non-
routine or unpredictable cycle testing would be charged under the reimbursable CLIN.    
 
Q173:  Reference TE C.7-8-WL and PWS Section C.12.  There are considerable discrepancies 
between the workload estimates provided in C.12 and TE C.7-8-WL.  For example, under C.12, 
line item C.7.1.1.3 indicates the offer can expect approximately 41,000 PM, project, repair and 
service orders (work orders).  However, TE C.7-8-WL indicates that almost 50,000 routine, 
urgent and emergency work orders were completed in FY10.  If PM work orders and project 
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work are added, the total completed is approximately 70,000.  Which data should the offeror use 
when developing staffing estimates?  Please clarify.   
 
A173:  Use 41,100 SOs.  For clarification TE C.7-8-WL is historical information. PWS Section 
C.12 is the anticipated annual workload.  Default to C.12 for proposal preparation purposes.  
Also see Q&A 19. 
 
Q174:  Reference C.1.11.5 a.  FAR 45.509 does not appear to be the correct reference.  Please 
clarify. 
 
A174:  See revised PWS. 
 
Q175:  Reference C.4.2.2 a.  Please clarify why the CO’s approval is required before the 
contractor can add to, modify or remove contractor-owned equipment?  
 
A175:  This statement is applicable to contractor acquired equipment that is purchased by the 
contractor on a cost reimbursable basis in the course of performance of this contract, and to 
which the Government takes title of that equipment. 
 
Q176:  Reference C.7.1.1.4 b.  The referenced paragraph states that DBA project work packages  
must identify the appropriate APC code for billing of the work.  In addition, the government may 
award DBA work to other contractors, that is, the DPW contractor has no exclusivity on the 
work.  Consequently, it is our interpretation that “Project Work”, is funded on a project-by-
project basis.  Therefore, the contractor’s cost estimate should not include DBA work in its 
proposal cost.  Is this interpretation correct?  Please clarify. 
 
A176:  See Q&A 24 and Q&A 154. 
 
Q177:  Reference C.7.2.1.1 c.  Will existing PM and other service plans be made available to the 
incoming contractor so that consistency in servicing intervals and other scheduled actions can be 
maintained?  Please confirm or clarify.   
 
A177:  No.  It is the responsibility of the in-coming contractor to develop a Preventive 
Maintenance Plan, for Government review, 60 days after contract performance start date.   
 
Q178:  Reference C.1.14 v. (5) Confined Space Program.  Is the contractor responsible for 
managing the entire confined space program for the base?  That is, controlling the program 
documentation, issuing permits, emergency response, etc.  Please clarify. 
 
A178:  No, the ISS contractor is not responsible to manage the confined space program for the 
entire installation.  The contractor is responsible for establishing a Confined Space Program for 
their area of responsibility, to include identifying risks and assuring their personnel are Confined 
Space trained and qualified in relation to the work they are required to do under this contract. 
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Q179:  Reference C.3.5.6 a-k.  Is the contractor responsible for all levels of maintenance and 
repair of GFE or will support be available from the installation maintenance activity for non-
GSA vehicles and equipment?  Please clarify.   
 
A179:  The contractor will be responsible to maintain all GFP.  
 
Q180:  Reference C.7.2.6.3.  The workload in this paragraph seems to suggest that the 
government requires operators at the swimming pool during the hours specified as opposed to 
daily inspections and maintenance.  Are pool operators during the normal hours of pool 
operation required?  Please clarify.   
 
A180:  No, operation of the swimming pool is not a requirement under this contract.  The hours 
of operation were provided for information purposes only to assist the contractor in planning 
their work. 
 
Q181:  Reference C.3.  Throughout the referenced section there are numerous references to GSA 
and government owned vehicles.  While there are some vehicles listed in Attachment 6 as GFP, 
there are few, if any, maintenance type vehicles and pick ups for contractor use.  Is there an 
additional list of vehicles (GSA or government-owned) that will be provided to the contractor?  
OR  Must the contractor provide its own fleet for contract operations?  Please clarify.   
 
A181:  See revised GFP listings.  Any vehicles or equipment that the contractor determines 
necessary for performance of the contract, that are not included on the revised GFP listings, shall 
be provided by the contractor. 
 
Q182:  Reference C.7.4.1.3 and Attachment 6.  There does not appear to be any trash collection 
vehicles or dumpsters listed as GFE.  Are trash collection vehicles and dumpsters to be 
contractor provided?  Please clarify.   
 
A182:  Refuse truck is listed on the GFP and the Government provides the dumpsters indicated 
in TE C7.26-WL. 
 
Q183:  Reference TE‐C.3‐2‐GFP– There does not appear to be an any Excel worksheet or book 
provided as part of the solicitation listing all GFP.  Request that this TE be provided. 
 
A183:  See Attachment 6, TE C.3-2-GFP. Attachment 6 is provided as a pdf file for posting 
purposes. 
 
Q184:  Attachment  1, page 34, C.2(vi),  DEFINITIONS AND ACRONYMS - Account Process 
Code, A designated 4-character alpha-numeric code that uniquely identifies each cost account, 
which must be used by DPW in accounting for expenditures under this contract. The PWS refers 
to Account Process Codes which “must be used by DPW in accounting for expenditures under 
this contract”. At what level of detail are these codes applied?   
 
A184:  This will identified during Phase-In. 
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Q185:  Attachment 1, page 110, C.7.3.2.1,  Landscape Maintenance - Improved Grounds, The 
Contractor shall provide all labor, management, supervision, tools, material and equipment 
required for landscape maintenance services on improved grounds. Landscape maintenance shall 
not be performed more frequently than required by the geographic and climatologic conditions of 
the installation. All areas and locations shall be maintained as indicated on the Installation 
Design Guide (IDG)., Will the Government provide workload data, such as acreage or will this 
work be accomplished through Service Orders?   
 
A185:  See Updated Section J and Attachment 17 “Roads and Grounds Information Sheet” 
provided with this amendment.  See Section C.12 for service order workload for this function. 
 
Q186:  Attachment 1, page 169, C.7.2.11.1.d, Solar Lights, Does number include all exterior 
parking, street, and pathway lights?  Also, can the Government provide light sizes and identify 
lights that are pole mounted with approximate  height?   
 
A186:  No.  300 Solar lights were installed by a utility provider, however, the Government does 
not have full accountability.  The pole mounted lights range between 20-60 feet.  Contractor will  
establish a complete listing during phase-in as part of their Preventative Maintenance Plan.   
 
Q187:  Attachment 1, page 171, C.12 and TE C.8-1, Anticipated PWS Annual Workload and 
EMERGENCY SERVICES MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT, The workload data provided in 
C.12 does not match the workload data provided in TE C.8-1., Total decals/passes and weapons 
registrations shown in TE C.8-1 shows 3,986 annually, and Section C.12 shows 6,000 annually, 
which is correct?   
 
A187:  The TE is a "monthly" report from one specific month.  6,000 annual permanent vehicle 
and weapons registrations and 36,000 temporary vehicle passes should be used for planning 
purposes.  
 
Q188:  Attachment 1, page 172, C.12 and TE C.8-2, Anticipated PWS Annual Workload and 
EMERGENCY SERVICES MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT, The workload data provided in 
C.12 does not match the workload data provided in TE C.8-2. Total hours shown in TE C.8-2 
shows 4,500 annual hours, and Section C.12 shows 3,260 total man-hours, which is correct?   
 
A188:  Direct calculation of the hours shown in TE C.8-2 results in a number of 4,500 hours, 
however, this does not account for the half days, spring break, Christmas break, and several other 
days that school is not in session as determined by the school district each year. Therefore, based 
on historical data, the 3,260 hours found in C.12 is a more accurate estimate for the actual 
workload.  PWS was revised. 
 
Q189:  Attachment 1, page 164-172, C.12, Anticipated PWS Annual Workload, The summary 
table for workload data is helpful for total hours assigned to some tasks, and the number of 
Service Calls required for others.  However, additional information is needed, such as the type of 
equipment to be serviced. Can the Government provide workload data on the types/quantity of  
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equipment to receive PM services?   
 
A189:  PM Services are developed by the contractor.  See TE’s for lists of buildings and 
equipment. 
 
Q190:  Attachment 1 and Attachment 3, page 66, C.3.3.5 and TE C.3-1, Housekeeping, The 
Contractor shall be responsible for all housekeeping in all Government provided as GFF to ISS 
Contractor as contractor occupied facilities to include yards, compounds, parking areas, and 
ancillary work areas to within fifty (50) feet of facility or half the distance to the next building or 
all the way to the natural boundary (sidewalk, roads, etc.).  Can the Government clarify TE-C.3-
1-GFF so that it identifies the portions of buildings the contractor is responsible for 
housekeeping?  Also, can the Government provide the square footage of each building including 
shop/admin areas, including restrooms, and break rooms?   
 
A190:  The Contractor will be provided GFF as identified on TE C.3-1 GFF. Square footage is 
included in TE C.7-15-WL. 
 
Q191:  Attachment 1 and Attachment 3 page 65, C.3.1, Government Furnished Property and 
Services. Government Furnished Property (GFP) consists of Government supplies and material, 
Government Furnished Equipment and Facilities (GFF) placed in the Contractor's custody.  Can 
the Government provide greater clarity regarding Government Furnished equipment and vehicles 
vs. what is historically Contractor Furnished?   
 
A191:  See revised TE C.3-2-GFP listing for a list of what the Government will provide in 
performance of this contact.  Offerors are responsible for determining all resources that will be 
required in performance of this contract and shall propose accordingly taking into account the 
GFP provided. 
 
Q192:  Attachment 10, page 4, CDRL C.6-3, Contract Data Requirements List (CDRL), CDRL 
C.6.3 Monthly Account Expenditures Report requires the identification of “postal costs” for each 
postal account each month. What is included in the postal costs? Both stamped and metered 
mail?   
 
A192:  Metered only.  There is no mention of "stamped" in the PWS.  It does not include 
affixing a 44 cent stamp to a letter.  It does include affixing the postage label that comes out of 
the postage meter, thus the term “metered.”  The postal costs would also include any fees for 
registered or insured mail.  The contractor will not be actually handling money.  Each 
Directorate has an account set up within RM.  The contractor tracks the funds expended each 
month to the appropriate accounts, and reports on the monthly report to the Government (COR 
and KO).   
 
Q193:  Attachment 10, page 4, CDRL C.6-4, Contract Data Requirements List (CDRL), CDRL 
C.6-4, CDRL C.6.4 Consolidated Quarterly Postage and Account Expenditures Report is 
essentially the same report as CDRL C.6.3. Can the two reports be combined into one CDRL? 
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A193:  No.  They have different distribution lines once they are received by the government.   
 
Q194:  Attachment 10, CDRL, Several CDRLs have the date of first submission as anywhere 
from 5 to 30 days prior to contract start date.  Will the preparation be funded under CLIN 0001? 
 
A194:  It is incumbent upon the Offeror to determine where in their cost/price submission they 
propose these costs within the CLIN structure of the solicitation taking into consideration the 
specific requirements and the offeror’s cost accounting policies/procedures. 
 
Q195:  Attachment 10, CDRL, What level of detail is required for cost reporting? The only 
CDRLs that appear to require cost information are C.7-1, Life Cycle Management Report, which 
only includes asset costs; and C.7-4, 1354 Work Sheet, Real Property, which is for Davis-Bacon 
Projects. Will the contractor report all cost data using GFEBS? If so, what is the frequency and 
detail? CLIN, PWS, sub-PWS, service order?   
 
A195:  No, not all costs are reported in GFEBS.   LCM/LCC and other costs are not part of 
GFEBs.  Contract reports, frequency and detail will be identified during Phase-In. 
 
Q196:  Attachment 3, page 116, TE C.7-18-WL2, Custodial Service Building Lists, Can the 
Government provide the square footage of each building including carpet, tile, etc. and will the 
number of restrooms and fixtures for materials and equipment purposes?   
 
A196:  TE-C.7-18-WL2 has the building numbers but not the number of bathrooms.  Square 
footage is included in the RPAF (TE C.7-15-WL).  Assume at least 1 Male/1 Female per 
building based on the building numbers on the TE.  Data is not available for square footage of 
tile and carpeting, etc.   
 
Q197:  Attachment 3, page 226, TE C.7-26-WL, Refuse Collection Points and Schedule,  Can 
the Government provide the type and size of container for equipment purposes?   
 
A197:  Refer to top of TE C.7.26-WL which provides type and size container required. 
  
Q198:  Attachment 3, page 232, TE C.7-27-WL, Recyclable Materials Collection Data, Can the 
Government provide tonnage by type of material, e.g. paper products, plastics, metals, etc?   
 
A198:  This level of detail is not available.  TE C.7-27-WL1 and TE C.7-27-WL2 provide 
historical information on tonnage of Recyclables collected and Solid Waste collected and are 
provided with this amendment.  PWS and Section J have been updated. 
 
Q199:  Attachment 3, page 111-114, TE C.7-18-SPEC, Standards for Custodial Services,  Can 
the Government provide workload data such as tile, carpet, number of restroom fixtures, etc. for 
each building listed?   
 
A199:  TE-C.7-18-WL2 has the building numbers but not the number of bathrooms.  Square 
footage is included in the RPAF (TE C.7-15-WL).  Assume at least 1 Male/1 Female per 
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building based on the building numbers on the TE.  Data is not available for square footage of 
tile and carpeting, etc.   
 
Q200:  Attachment 8, page 130, Appendix A, Wages, Will position descriptions be provided for 
each of the labor classifications shown the CBA to ensure that offers are able to propose a labor 
mix that is consistent with CBA requirements?   
 
A200:  Position descriptions will not be provided.  The information that we are authorized to 
provide is in the attached Collective Bargaining Agreements (CBAs). 
 
Q201:  Section B and Attachment 1 C.1XXX, page 2 and 10, CLIN 0001, C.1.7, Phase-In, CLIN 
0001. Phase-In, PWS C.1.7 is the only line item available for pricing the requirements of  
Section C.1 of the PWS., Request that  a Line Item be added to Section B for the pricing of all 
other requirements of PWS Section C.1 
 
A201:  A separate CLIN will not be added to the solicitation for this purpose.  It is incumbent 
upon Offerors to determine where, in their cost/price submission, they  propose these costs 
within the CLIN structure of the solicitation taking into consideration the specific requirement 
and the offeror’s cost accounting policies/procedures. 
 
Q202:  Section I, page 50, FAR 52.245-2, Government Property Installation Operation Services, 
Why did the Government remove this clause from the final RFP?  
 
A202:  FAR 52.245-2 is applicable if the GFP is provided for initial provisioning only and the 
Government is not responsible for repair or replacement.  However, IAW the PWS Section C.3, 
Paragraph C.3.1, the Government will provide property suitable for use and will repair & replace 
GFP according to TE C.3-2, when repair/replacement is preapproved by the Contracting 
Officer’s Representative (COR). 
 
Q203:  Section I and L, page 53; 91, FAR 52.222-2, Payment for Overtime Premiums, * Insert 
either "zero" or the dollar amount agreed to during negotiations. The inserted figure does not 
apply to the exceptions in paragraph (a)(1) through (a)(4) of the clause., Where in the 
contractor's proposal is the "zero" or negotiated dollar amount to be inserted; is it to be placed in 
the Section L table column titled "OT Rate"?  Also, can the Government further define the 
overtime premium? 
 
A203:  Clause 52.222-2 is applicable to cost-reimbursement contracts and therefore only applies 
to the DPW function for this contract.  Pursuant to FAR 22.103-2, it is the Government’s policy 
that “contractors shall perform all contracts, so far as practicable, without using overtime, 
particularly as a regular employment practice, except when lower overall costs to the 
Government will result or when it is necessary to meet urgent program needs.”  Accordingly, if  
it is the intent of the offeror to use overtime as part of their staffing strategy (for the DPW 
function of the contract) they are required to propose the overtime and receive appropriate 
approvals IAW FAR 52.222-2(b) and FAR 22.103-3 and 22.103-4.  Overtime should be 
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addressed in the Cost/Price Proposal TAB D, Paragraph 1 “Cost Rationale Section” Note A and 
Paragraph 2 “Cost Substantiation Section” in the Direct Labor Table and Summary Roll-Up. 
“Overtime premium,” as defined in FAR Part 2 means “the difference between the contractor's 
regular rate of pay to an employee for the shift involved and the higher rate paid for overtime.  It 
does not include shift premium, i.e., the difference between the contractor's regular rate of pay to 
an employee and the higher rate paid for extra-pay-shift work.”   
 
Q204:  Section J, Page 49, FAR 52.222-41, Service Contract Act, (f) Successor Contracts, We 
understand that there are two (2) Collective Bargaining Agreements (CBA) in effect on the 
current ISS contract; one with the Teamsters Local 166 and another with the International 
Association of Machinists and Aerospace Workers District Lodge 725.  Will the CBA with the 
Machinists Union apply to the successor contract?  If so, will the Government provide this CBA? 
 
A204:  See Q&A 14. 
 
Q205:  Section L, page 84, C.2, Proposal format, Page limits, Does the government require only 
doubled-sided printing or is single-sided printing also acceptable? 
 
A205:  Double Sided is required - Reference Section L, Paragraph C. 
 
Q206:  Section L, page 85, C.2(vi), Proposal Format, This paragraph appears to contain 
contradictory information about required margins.  The first sentence states "minimum of 1/2" 
margins" while the fourth sentence states:  "Use at least 1 inch margins on the top and bottom 
and 3/4 inch side margins."  Please clarify what margin spacing is to be used. 
 
A206:  A page shall be an 8½” X 11” sheet of paper with a minimum of 1” margins. Foldouts 
will be counted as the appropriate number of pages based on an 8½” X 11” sheet of paper and 
use at least 1”margins on the top and bottom and ¾” side margins.  
 
Q207:  Section L, page 87, TAB 3, Subcontractors, TAB 3 does not appear relevant to Past 
Performance and more relevant to a TAB in Volume I.  The Government may want to consider 
realignment of this requirement. 
 
A207:  The four proposal volumes that offerors are required to submit in response to this 
solicitation will be evaluated by four separate teams of evaluators.  TAB 3 of Volume II is for 
Offerors to provide Past Performance information for their proposed major Subcontractors.  Past 
performance information submitted must be recent and relevant to the work they are proposing 
that subcontractor to perform on the Fort Irwin ISS requirement.  Accordingly, offerors are 
required to include an outline of how the effort required by the PWS will be assigned for 
performance to their proposed subcontractors.  TAB 2 of Volume I requires offerors to address, 
in addition to multiple other elements, the offeror’s proposed Management structure to include 
subcontractor support (to include elements of the PWS that those subcontractors will support).  
See revisions to Section L added for clarification. 
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Q208:  Section L.C.3.(a)(2); M.C., Subfactor A, page 85;97, Tab 2-Management and 
Organization, Management and Organization indicates to identify key personnel positions and 
the qualification standards for these positions. Section L does not state the need to supply 
resumes for key personnel. However, in Section M, Subfactor A, key personnel are part of the 
evaluation criteria. Are resumes for key personnel required, and if so, are the resumes included 
as part of the 100-page limitation for this Volume? 
 
A208:  Resumes are not required for key personnel, Offerors are required to propose Job 
Qualification Standards (JQS) for key personnel (positions) and rationale for identifying those 
positions as key.  These JQS are part of the 100 page limit for this Volume.  JQS must address, at 
a minimum, education, certifications, and professional experience requirements for each 
position.  Key personnel (positions) will be evaluated based on the value and experience those 
personnel bring to support the Fort Irwin ISS requirement as assessed based on the JQS proposed 
for the key personnel positions as well as the rationale for identifying those positions as key.  
Although resumes are not required for the personnel who will be occupying these key positions, 
the successful contractor will be required to staff the contract, for the life of the contract, with 
personnel who at a minimum meet these JQS. 
 
Q209:  Section M, page 97, Subfactor D, Technical Expertise (experience), Section M, Subfactor 
D states that the offeror will also be required to address experience of each team member or 
subcontractor.,  How does the Government define team member or subcontractor as it relates to 
this requirement? Is there an absolute value or percentage threshold that a firm must meet to be 
considered a team member or subcontractor? 
 
A209:  Under Section L, Volume I, TAB 2 “Management and Organization”, Offerors are 
required to describe their proposed management structure, to include teaming arrangements and 
subcontractor support (to include elements of the PWS that team members/subcontractors will 
support).  Under TAB 5 “Technical Expertise (experience)” of this same section of the 
solicitation, experience shall be provided for those team members/subcontractors that offerors 
have identified as part of their management structure in TAB 2.  Although this information 
should track to the Past Performance and Cost/Price information provided for proposed major 
subcontractors in Volumes II and IV of the proposal, this does not preclude offerors from 
identifying team members or subcontractors, that fall below the threshold for major 
subcontractors, if the offerors determines those members critical to their proposed management 
structure. 
 
Q210:  Reference RFP Attachment 6, C.3 GFP Listing, From our review of reference, there is 
only a small number of general purpose trucks provided. How are the current general purpose 
vehicles (carry truck, van) being provided and by whom? 
 
A210:  See revised TE C.3-2-GFP provided with this amendment.  See also Q&A 52a.  
 
Q211:  Reference RFP General, Are any of the PWS functions being subcontracted by the 
incumbent? If so, who are they and what functions are they performing? 
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A211:  Incument contractor information will not be provided with this amendment. 

Q212:  Reference TE C.7-8-WL, Please provide an explanation as to why the PM history for 
FY10 went up significantly over FY08 and FY09 for HVAC/Appliance, fire alarms/IS1105 and 
Pest Control.   
 
A212:  Workload data for FY10 is correct.  New record keeping processes were instituted to 
provide better/more reliable data.  See PWS Section C.12 for proposal preparation estimates. 
 
Q213:  Reference C.1.11.3 Quality Control Plan, page 15, The Contractor shall establish, 
implement, and maintain a documented Quality Control System and procedures to assure quality 
of performance under this contract., Infers that a Quality Control System does not currently exist.  
If one currently exists, will it be provided to the winning Offeror post award?   
 
A213:  It will not be provided.  Each contract is a stand-alone effort and requires the successor 
contractor to address their management of this effort to include submission of all required 
Plans/Programs.  The successful Offeror will be required to submit their Quality Control Plan in 
accordance with the PWS and by the date specified in Attachment 10, CDRLS. 
 
Q214:  Reference C.1.11.8 Risk Management Plan, page 16, The Contractor shall establish, 
implement, and maintain a Safety Program and procedures to reduce or eliminate on-the-job 
injuries, illnesses, and property loss due to mishaps and accidents. Infers that a Risk 
Management Plan does not currently exist.   If one currently exists, will it be provided to the 
winning offeror post award?   
 
A214:  It will not be provided.  Each contract is a stand-alone effort and requires the successor 
contractor to address their management of this effort to include submission of all required 
Plans/Programs.  The successful Offeror will be required to submit their Risk Management Plan 
in accordance with the PWS and by the date specified in Attachment 10, CDRLS.  
 
Q215:  Reference C.1.13 Quality Control (QC), page 18, The Contractor shall establish, 
implement, and manage a Quality Control Program in accordance with FAR 46.105, Contractor 
Responsibilities, to ensure that all performance work statement (PWS) services are performed to 
the required performance standards. Infers that a Quality Control System does not currently 
exist.  If one currently exists, will it be provided to the winning offeror post award? 
 
A215:  It will not be provided.  Each contract is a stand-alone effort and requires the successor 
contractor to address their management of this effort to include submission of all required 
Plans/Programs.  The successful Offeror is required to submit their Quality Control Plan in 
accordance with the PWS and by the date specified in Attachment 10, CDRLS.   
 
Q216:  Reference C.1.13.1 Quality Control Program, page 18, The Contractor shall establish and 
maintain a Quality Control Program with the objective of identifying, preventing, and correcting 
deficiencies in the quality of services before performance becomes unacceptable. Infers that a 
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Quality Control System does not currently exist.  If one currently exists, will it be provided to the 
winning offeror post award?   
 
A216:  It will not be provided.  Each contract is a stand-alone effort and requires the successor 
contractor to address their management of this effort to include submission of all required 
Plans/Programs.  The successful Offeror is required to submit their Quality Control Plan in 
accordance with the PWS and by the date specified in Attachment 10, CDRLS. 
 
Q217:  Reference C.1.13.2 Quality Control Plan (QCP), page 18, As the basis of the Quality 
Control Program, the Contractor shall develop, implement, update, and maintain a QCP (CDRL 
C.1-5) that documents the Contractor’s procedures for all Quality Control activities. Infers that a 
Quality Control System does not currently exist.  If one currently exists, will it be provided to the 
winning offeror post award?   
 
A217:  It will not be provided.  Each contract is a stand-alone effort and requires the successor 
contractor to address their management of this effort to include submission of all required 
Plans/Programs.  The successful Offeror is required to submit their Quality Control Plan in 
accordance with the PWS and by the date specified in Attachment 10, CDRLS. 
 
Q218:  Reference C.1.13.2 Quality Control Plan (QCP), page 19, Establish a Customer Comment 
program for input and comment processing. This program should contain a process for validating 
complaints and providing feedback to the customer and to the Government regarding corrective 
action(s) taken. Infers that a Customer Comment program has not been established.  If one 
currently exists, will the results of the previous 6 months be provided to prospective bidders prior 
to release of the Final RFP?    
 
A218:  The previous customer comments will not be provided. 
 
Q219:  Reference C.1.14 General Safety Requirements c., page 20, Be responsible and liable for 
any citations issued by State OSHA for violation of applicable standards. Request that 
prospective bidders be provided results of the most recent 12 months of OSHA inspections and 
violations to assess vulnerability on this key issue.   
 
A219:  OSHA inspections and violations will not be provided. 
 
Q220:  Reference C.1.14 General Safety Requirements d., page 20, Conduct inspections, test, 
and maintain Government Furnished Equipment (GFE) or Contractor-Owned and Contractor-
Operated equipment, or facilities as related to safety/health hazards per applicable State codes 
and regulations. Request that prospective bidders be provided results of the most recent 12 
months of OSHA inspections, tests, and a listing of all GFE and contractor owned/operated 
equipment.   
 
A220:  OSHA inspections will not be provided. See TE C-3.2-GFP for a list of all GFP provided.  
A list of Contractor owned/operated equipment will not be provided.  
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Q221:  Reference C.1.14 General Safety Requirements e., page 21, Establish, implement, and 
maintain an Injury and Illness Prevention Program, Infers that an Injury and Illness Prevention 
Program is not in place.  If one currently exists, will prospective bidders be provided a copy of 
the current program status prior to release of the final RFP?  
 
A221:  It will not be provided.  Each contract is a stand-alone effort and requires the successor 
contractor to address their management of this effort to include submission of all required 
Plans/Programs.  The successful Offeror is required to submit their Injury and Illness Prevention 
Program in accordance with the PWS and by the date specified in Attachment 10, CDRLS. 
  
Q222:  Reference C.1.14 General Safety Requirements f., page 21, Establish, implement, and 
maintain procedures for identifying and evaluating workplace hazards. Infers that a process for 
identifying and evaluating workplace hazards does not currently exist.  If one does currently 
exist, will prospective bidders be provided a copy of the current SOP prior to release of the final 
RFP?   
 
A222:  No, the successful Offeror is required to establish, implement and maintain procedures 
for identifying and evaluating workplace hazards. 
 
Q223:  Reference C.1.14 General Safety Requirements f., Establish methods for correcting 
unsafe and unhealthy work conditions, and establish procedures for investigating occupational 
injuries and illnesses. Infers methodology and procedures do not currently exist.  If these do exist 
will the government provide a copy of current process and procedures to prospective bidders 
prior to release of the final RFP?    
 
A223:  No, the successful Offeror is required to establish methods for correcting unsafe and 
unhealthy work conditions, and establish procedures for investigating occupational injuries and 
illnesses. 
 
Q224:  Reference C.1.14 General Safety Requirements i., page 21, Establish, implement, and 
maintain an occupational safety and health training program, Infers that an Occupational Safety 
and Health training program does not currently exist.  If one does exist will prospective bidders 
be provided a copy of the current program prior to release of the final RFP?   
 
A224:  No, the successful Offeror is required to establish, implement, and maintain an 
occupational safety and health training program. 
 
Q225:  Reference C.1.14 General Safety Requirements j., page 21, Establish, implement, and 
maintain a system for communicating with employees on occupational safety and health matters, 
Infers that a communications system for communicating with employees on Occupational safety 
and health matters does not currently exist.  If such a system currently exists, will prospective 
bidders be provided a copy of the current program prior to release of the final RFP?   
 
A225:  No, the successful Offeror is required to establish, implement, and maintain a system for 
communicating with employees on occupational safety and health matters. 
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Q226:  Reference C.1.14 General Safety Requirements k., page 21, Establish, implement, and 
maintain a program to keep appropriate records of steps taken to implement and maintain the risk 
management program. Infers that a Risk Management Plan does not currently exist.   If one 
currently exists, will it be provided to the winning Offeror post award?   
 
A226:  It will not be provided.  Each contract is a stand-alone effort and requires the successor 
contractor to address their management of this effort to include submission of all required 
Plans/Programs.  The successful Offeror will be required to establish, implement, and maintain a 
program to keep appropriate records of steps taken to implement and maintain the risk 
management program. 
 
Q227:  Reference C.1.14 General Safety Requirements l., page 21, Activity Hazards Analysis, 
Will the government provide a copy of all current Activity Hazard Analysis that has been 
completed on this program by the incumbent, prior to release of the final RFP?   
 
A227:  No, this information will not be provided.   
 
Q228:  Reference C.1.14 General Safety Requirements m., page 21, Assess contract employee’s 
physical, medical, and emotional qualifications for performing the duties to which they are 
assigned. Some factors to be considered in making work assignments are strength, endurance, 
agility, coordination, and visual and hearing acuity, Will the government provide minimum 
standards by labor category for all incumbent personnel to prospective bidders prior to release of 
the final RFP? 
 
A228:  No, incumbent contractor information will not be provided. 
 
Q229:  Reference C.1.14 General Safety Requirements m., page 21, Employee’s Physical 
Qualifications, Who approves the employees physical qualifications? 
 
A229:  It is incumbent upon the Offeror to propose appropriate qualified staffing in accordance 
with the PWS. 
 
Q230:  Reference C.1.14 General Safety Requirements v., page 22, Identify and locate all areas 
requiring Confined Space Entry at NTC and Fort Irwin, Implies that a current listing of areas 
requiring confined space entry at NTC and Ft Irwin does not currently exist.  If such a list does 
exist, will the government provide a copy to prospective bidders prior to release of the final 
RFP?   
 
A230:  The Government does not have a list of all areas designated as confined space.  The 
contractor will be required to establish a Confined Space Program for their area of responsibility, 
to include identifying risks and assuring their personnel are Confined Space trained and qualified 
in relation to the work they are required to do under this contract.  Information on Confined 
Space Program, training and criteria for identifying what constitutes “confined space” is 
available on the web at http://www.osha.gov. 

http://www.osha.gov/�
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Q231:  Reference C.1.15 General Security Requirements, page 23, Email accounts and National 
Agency Checks, Will the government provide a listing of incumbent personnel by labor category 
that have email accounts or require access to the government servers to prospective bidders prior 
to release of the final RFP? 
 
A231:  No, incumbent contractor information will not be provided. 
 
Q232:  Reference C.1.15.1 Tasks, page 23, Obtain security clearances and maintain security 
clearances for personnel involved in the following:  Public Works, Management Services, 
DPTMS, and other, Will the government provide a listing of incumbent personnel by labor 
category that have security clearances to prospective bidders prior to release of the final RFP?  
Additionally, please refine the definition of "other". 
 
A232:  No, a list of incumbent personnel by labor categories that have security clearances will 
not be provided.  “Other” indicates any position not specifically called out in that particular 
section of the PWS, but identified somewhere in the rest of the PWS as requiring a Secret 
clearance – for example the Locksmith.  The Offeror may propose their staffing in whatever 
configuration they feel is most effective for accomplishing the work to be done.  However, 
certain functions require that they are done by a person with a Secret clearance.  Additionally, in 
accordance with AR 25-2, in order to receive an email account or access the Government 
network, initiation of a national agency check (NAC) is required. Offerors shall, as part of their 
staffing structure in their Mission Capability proposal, identify what positions will require a 
Secret Security clearance and what positions will require access to the Government Network 
based on the tasks that are assigned to each position.  
 
Q233: Reference C.1.16 Information Security, page 24, Develop, implement and maintain an 
Information Systems Security Program for control of classified materials, documents ..., Implies 
that a current Information Systems Security Program does not exist.  If such a program does 
exist, will the government provide a copy to prospective bidders prior to release of the final 
RFP? 
 
A233:  It will not be provided.  Each contract is a stand-alone effort and requires the successor 
contractor to address their management of this effort to include submission of all required 
Plans/Programs.  The successful Offeror is required to develop, implement and maintain an 
Information Systems Security Program in accordance with the PWS. 
  
Q234:  Reference C.1.17 Employee Conduct, a. page 25, Well Groomed, Define “well 
groomed”.  
 
A234:  From the Miriam-Webster Dictionary: Well-dressed and neat. 
 
Q235:  Reference C.1.17 Employee Conduct, b., page 25, Uniform in appearance, As written, 
does this only apply to employees covered by the collective bargaining agreement or does this 
apply to all employees?   
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A235:  Stating “workers covered by a CBA” was used as an example.  The intention is to be able 
to identify individuals employed by the contractor.  The PWS paragraph just prior to the one 
referenced here states “Contractor employees shall be well-groomed, neat in appearance and 
dressed in appropriate attire for the work to be performed.  A few paragraphs later the PWS 
states “… ensure each contractor employee wears a contractor-furnished building pass/badge 
displayed at all times above the waist in a conspicuous place on the front of exterior clothing, 
except when safety or health reasons prohibit, (i.e. protective clothing worn by Fire Department 
personnel).”  The intent for uniforms is for the labor type workers, not the administrative staff.  
We do require contract workers to be easily identified as such. (i.e., employees covered by the 
Collective Bargaining Agreement.)  The PWS has been changed to read “ b.  Contractor 
employees, where applicable, shall wear clothing that is uniform in appearance in order to 
readily identify individuals employed by the contractor.  This applies to workers in areas where it 
would be unsafe or impractical to display a building pass/badge on the front of exterior clothing 
all times.” 
 
Q236:  Reference C.1.19 Key Control Program, page 26, The contractor shall establish and 
maintain a Key Control Program. Implies that a current key control program does not exist.  If 
such a program does exist will the government provide a copy to prospective bidders prior to 
release of the final RFP?   
 
A236:  It will not be provided.  Each contract is a stand-alone effort and requires the successor 
contractor to address their management of this effort to include submission of all required 
Plans/Programs.  The successful Offeror is required to establish and implement a key control 
system.  
 
Q237:  Reference C.1.19 Key Control Program, Who approves this program?   
 
A237:  The Government Property Adminstrator, COR, and Installation Security Officer will 
review the Key Control Program and the Adminstrative Contracting Officer will be responsible 
for approving it.  
  
Q238:  Reference C.1.33, page 29, Interaction with other Contractors,  The Government will 
award other contracts for engineering work and other services each year, What are the limitations 
on the prospective engineering work and services that may be contracted for separately from this 
award?   
 
A238:  Anything not covered in this contract.  Additionally. there are privatized utilities 
contractors on this installation that interact with the ISS Contractor on a daily basis.   
 
Q239:  Reference C.1.35 Energy Conservation Program, page 29, Energy Conservation Program, 
As written, this implies that an Energy Conservation program does not currently exist, if such a 
program exists will the government provide a copy to prospective bidders prior to release of the 
RFP?   
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A239:  It will not be provided.  Each contract is a stand-alone effort and requires the successor 
contractor to address their management of this effort to include submission of all required 
Plans/Programs.  The successful Offeror is required to submit an Energy Conservation Program 
in accordance with the PWS. 
 
Q240:  Reference C.1.35 Energy Conservation Program, page 29, Energy Conservation Program, 
Who approves this plan?  
 
A240:  The Installation Energy Manager will review the Energy Conservation Program and the 
Administrative Contracting Officer will be responsible for approving it. 
 
Q241:  Reference C.1.36.1 Energy Protection Program Tasks, page 29, Environment Protection 
Tasks:  The contractor shall develop, establish, and maintain a plan /program to minimize the 
discharge of pollutants (ground, water, and air) and all other adverse influences on 
environmental quality.  As written this implies that an environmental protection plan does not 
currently exist, if such a program exists will the government provide a copy to prospective 
bidders prior to release of the final RFP? 
 
A241:  It will not be provided.  Each contract is a stand-alone effort and requires the successor 
contractor to address their management of this effort to include submission of all required 
Plans/Programs.  The successful Offeror is required to submit an Environmental Protection 
Plan/Program in accordance with the PWS. 
 
Q242:  Reference C.1.36.1 Energy Protection Program Tasks, page 29, Environment Protection 
Plan, Who approves this plan?   
 
A242:  The DPW Environmental Division will review the Environment Protection Plan and the 
Adminstrative Contracting Officer will be responsible for approving it. 
 
Q243:  Reference C.1.38 Property Facilities, page 30, The contractor shall be responsible for 
establishing, implementing and managing the government furnished property, and contractor 
furnished property. As written this implies that a property accountability system does not 
currently exist.  If such a program exists, will the government provide a synopsis of the software 
that is currently used, the number of line items in the accounts, and a review of the past 6 months 
of discrepancies to the prospective bidders prior to release.   
 
A243:  This information will not be provided.  The successful Offeror will be required to 
establish and implement their own system to manage, control, use, preserve, protect, repair and 
maintain all Government property in their stewardship.  The successor contractor will also be 
required to operate the Property Book Unit Supply Enhanced (PBUSE) system for accountability 
of GFP and to maintain the Government’s official property book records (Ref PWS para 
C.3.5.3).  A synopsis of the PBUSE system is available on the web and will be made available to 
the successful Offeror during Phase-In.  The number of line items is available in TE C.3-2.   
 



Fort Irwin Installation Support Services 
Solicitation W9124B-11-R-0019, Amendment 0003 – Questions & Answers  
 

55 

 

Q244:  Reference C.1.40 Government Furnished Files, page 30, …Contractor developed 
standard operating procedures acceptable to the government, As written, this implies that such an 
SOP does not currently exist.  If one does exist, will it be provided to prospective bidders prior to 
release of the final RFP?  Who approves the SOP?   
 
A244:  The information will not be provided.  The successful Offeror will be required to 
establish and implement their own Standard Operating Procedure for maintenance of 
Government files in accordance with the guidance referenced in PWS paragraph C.1.40.   The 
Government will review and has approval authority for this SOP and all contractor SOPs that 
directly or indirectly affect performance of the contract requirements.  
 
Q245:  Reference C.1.40 Government Furnished Property, page 31, c.3.2 Property Management 
Control System (PMCS), Who approves the Property Management Plan (Also PWS Paragraph 
C.1.11.4)   
 
A245:  The Government Property Administrator will review the Property Management Plan and 
the Administrative Contracting Officer will be responsible for approving it. 
 
Q246:  Reference C.3.5.1 Government Furnished Property, page 65, As reads, the contractor 
shall affix decals to all GFP (except Facilities), identifying the property as Government owned. 
As written, this implies that no decals are currently in place. Please clarify.   
 
A246:  The Contractor is responsible for managing all GFP in accordance with their proposed 
and Government approved Property Management Plan.  GFP decals or labels do not have to be 
removed unless the incoming contractor wishes to re-label everything, in which case they would 
be responsible to remove and re-label.  Normally, labels are applied when they fall off or when a 
new piece of equipment comes into the GFP inventory. 
 
Q247:  Reference C.3.5.5 GFP Listing and Records, page 66.  As written, the contractor shall 
maintain approved document registers, Who assigns the block numbers for use in installation 
document registers?  Do these accounts have separate DODAACs?   
 
A247:  The Installation Property Book Office is responsible for assigning the block numbers. 
Contractor does not have a separate DODAAC. 
 
Q248:  Reference C.3.5.5 GFP Listings and Records, page 66, Maintain durable and expendable 
shortage annexes, Request the government provide a listing of those items that require a shortage 
annex.  Recommend that the government consider using component listings vs. Shortage annexes 
to improve accountability.   
 
A248:  A listing of items that require a shortage annex is not available at this time.  The 
successful Offeror’s Property Management Plan should incorporate best practices to improve 
accountability. 
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Q249:  Reference C.3.5.6 Government Owned, Contractor Operated, Contractor Maintenance 
Program, page 66.  As written, the contractor shall develop and implement a system to manage, 
control, use preserve, protect, repair and maintain all government  property …, As written, this 
implies that such a system does not currently exist.  If one does exist, will it be provided to 
prospective bidders prior to release of the final RFP?  Who approves the SOP?   
 
A249:  It will not be provided.  Each contract is a stand-alone effort and requires the successor 
contractor to address their management of this effort to include submission of all required 
Plans/Programs.  The successful Offeror is required to submit their Property Management Plan in 
accordance with the PWS and by the date indicated in Attachment 10, CDRLS. 
 
Q250:  Reference C.3.5.6 Government Owned, Contractor Operated, Contractor Maintenance 
Program, page 66, System for government property as identified in para c.3.5.6, Who approves 
this system?   
 
A250:  The Government Property Adminstrator will review the program and the Administrative 
Contracting Officer will be responsible for approving it. 
 
Q251:  Reference C.4.2.2 Contractor Furnished Equipment Listing, page 71, Contractor 
Furnished Equipment, As written, implies that a current list of contractor furnished equipment is 
used on site.  Request the Contracting Office provide a copy of the current contractor furnished 
equipment used in support of this contract for prospective bidders prior to release of the final 
RFP. 
 
A251:  A list of current Contractor Furnished Equipment will not be provided.  Offerors are 
required to determine what, if any, contractor furnished equipment will be required to support the 
follow-on effort and propose it accordingly, taking into account GFP being provided for this 
requirement. 
 
Q252:  Reference C.4.5.1 Reporting of All Purchase Requests, page 72, As written, "the 
contractor shall submit a monthly listing of all purchase requests for which dollars were 
obligated or spent against the contractor's quarterly funding ceiling, to the contracting officer. 
Implies that a quarterly funding ceiling has been provided to the contractor.  Request a copy of 
the previous 4 quarters of funding ceiling that was used by the incumbent for calculating 
purposes to all offerors prior to the final RFP release. 
 
A252:  The PWS has been revised to remove the reference to a quarterly funding ceiling.  This 
paragraph now reads “The Contractor shall submit a monthly listing of all purchase requests for 
which dollars were obligated or spent related to the Cost Reimbursable CLIN(s) on this contract.  
This report shall be submitted to the Contracting Officer. ” 
 
Q253:  Reference C.7.1.1.1 Life Cycle Management, page 85, The PWS states that “The 
Contractor shall include estimated break-even analysis over the life of the Contract, with all 
LCC, especially for repair by replacement of components and systems, showing payback year 
with and without inflation.” Will the government provide detail workload data to show 
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transactions broken down by month, quarter or per year besides the information provided in 
C.12.1 Specific Requirements which only states that 12 reports were completed in one year?   
 
A253:  This level of detail is not available. These reports do not currently exist.  Section C.12 
shows ANTICIPATED workload.  The successful contractor will be required to develop these 
reports, anticipated to be one per month, as part of their LCM program. 
 
Q254:  Reference C.7.1.1.2 Operations and Maintenance Management, page 86, The PWS states 
that “The Contractor shall respond to service orders (SOs); complete preventive maintenance 
(PM), and complete individual job orders for facilities across Fort Irwin including 
Barstow/Daggett listed in the real property asset file (RPAF).” Will the government provide 
historical data to show transactions by month, quarter or by year besides the information 
provided in C.12.1 Specific Requirements which only states that 12 reports were completed?  
What type of service orders were processed?  
 
A254:  This level of detail is not available. See PWS Section C.12 for anticipated workload 
estimates for proposal preparation purposes. See Q&A 19. 
 
Q255:  Reference C.7.1.1.2 Operations and Maintenance Management, page 86, The PWS states 
that “The Contractor shall clean and restore work sites to their original condition (prior to fault 
condition) upon the completion of approved work, to include when the work entails the 
complete, or partial removal of floors, cabinets, furniture, appliances, foundations, and similar 
items in order to gain access to the work area or system components to be repaired.” Will the 
government explain the standards in which the task is to be performed?   
 
A255:  Original condition means the condition of the area prior to the fault or damage occurring.   
 
Q256:  Reference C.7.1.1.3 Work/Service Order Management, page 87, The PWS states that 
“The Contractor shall respond to emergency, urgent and routine SOs (TE C.7-3-SPEC). The 
Contractor shall maintain and repair all buildings, structures, and associated real property and 
IBE, encompassing a variety of facilities, located at Fort Irwin and Barstow/Daggett Heliport.”  
The PWS states that “The Contractor shall maintain and repair all buildings, structures, and 
associated real property and IBE, encompassing a variety of facilities, located at Fort Irwin and 
Barstow/Daggett Heliport. That the Contractor shall provide for the fabrication, installation, 
modification, repair, and replacement of a variety of structures, components, and equipment used 
in Fort Irwin facilities and on grounds.” Will the government provide a more detailed 
explanation on what constitute services e.g. emergency, urgent and routine? C.12.1 Specific 
Requirements only gives how many of each were supported.   Can the government please 
provide a detail list of what type of routine service orders were processed of the 36,000 service 
orders as stated in C.12.1 Specific Requirements?  Can the government please provide a detail 
list of what type of urgent service orders were processed of the 3,850 service orders as stated in 
C.12.1 Specific Requirements? Q. Can the government please provide a detail list of what type 
of emergency service orders were processed of the 150 service orders as stated in C.12.1 Specific 
Requirements? Q. Can the government please provide a detail list of what type of afterhours 
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service orders were processed of the 1,100 service orders as stated in C.12.1 Specific 
Requirements?   
 
A256:  The level of detail is not available.  The data collected and provided in the TEs (i.e. TE 
C.7-8-WL) is the data that is available.  See C.7-3-SPEC, Priority Conditions and Buildings. 
 
Q257:  Reference C.7.1.1.3 Work/Service Order Management, page 87, The PWS states that 
“The Contractor shall provide for the fabrication, installation, modification, repair, and 
replacement of a variety of structures, components, and equipment used in Fort Irwin facilities 
and on grounds.” Q. Will the government provide a more detail description other than that 
provide in C.12.1 Specific Requirements which only states that the “Total Number of PM, 
Project, Repair, and Service Orders (Routine, Urgent, and Emergency)” were 40,000? Q. Will 
the government provide a breakdown that will identify and/or classify the 40,000 transactions? 
Q. What type of after hour services were provided?    
 
A257:  This level of detail is not available. The data collected and provided in the TEs (i.e. TE 
C.7-8-WL) is the data that is available. See PWS Section C.12 for anticipated workload 
estimates for proposal preparation purposes. See Q&A 19. 
 
Q258:  Reference C.7.1.1.5 Petroleum, Oil and Lubricant (POL) Spill Prevention, page 89, The 
PWS states that “The Contractor shall respond to its own POL spills as a priority service call and 
conduct operations to minimize generating POL spills and ensure proper handling, storage, and 
disposal.” Q. Will the government provide a breakdown list of how many per type of services 
were provided other than 12 detailed summaries were completed as stated in C.12.1 Specific 
Requirements?   
 
A258:  This level of detail is not available. 
 
Q259:  Reference C.7.1.1.6 HAZMAT and Waste Management, page 90, The PWS states that 
“The Contractor shall conduct operations to minimize its own Hazardous Material (HAZMAT) 
waste generation to include proper handling, moving, storage, and disposal.” Q. Will the 
government define/explain in more detail the requirements for handling, moving, storage, and 
disposal of Hazardous Materials? Will the government provide a breakdown of how many 
services were provided for each area other than the number of detailed reports completed stated 
in C.12.1 Specific Requirements.   
 
A259:  The successful Contractor is responsible for developing their processes and procedures to 
minimize its own HAZMAT waste generation.  This level of detail is not available. 
 
Q260:  Reference C.7.1.1.7 Excavation Permits, page 91, The PWS states that “The Contractor 
shall obtain all necessary excavation permits and contact and coordinate with all agencies listed 
on the permits.”  Q. How many excavation permits are processed per quarter or per year, 
preferably FY10?   
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A260:  Approximately 240 per year.  Excavation Permits are dependent on work/repairs and 
cannot be accurately predicted.   
 
Q261:  Reference C.7.1.4 Public Works Parts and Material Warehouse, page 94,  The PWS states 
that “The Contractor shall a. Properly stock, issue, maintain serviceability, and maintain 
accountability of all parts and materials inside GFF.  The Contractor shall monitor demand for 
bench stock and materials. b. Issue all materials against a specific work identifying number. c. 
Maintain a record showing:”  Q. How many receipts and issues were processed for FY10?   
 
A261:  Data for number of receipts and issues processes is not available.  However, there are 
currently approximately 2,800 to 3,000 line items stocked, which range in price range from $215 
to $220,000.   
 
Q262:  Reference C.7.1.4.2 Standards, page 95, The PWS states that “The Contractor shall 
comply with the performance requirements outlined in the PWS.” Q. Can the government please 
elaborate on what standards are referred to in this section?   
 
A262:  AR 710-2 and all other standards as defined in the PWS. 
 
Q263:  Reference C.7.1.5.3 Workload, page 95, C.12.1 Specific Requirements does not show 
any form of workload data, it only states that 50 demands were recorded. Q. Can the government 
please provide a more detail workload/historical data on what type of transactions were 
processed?   
 
A263:  This level of detail is not available. For anything that is excess and unserviceable in the 
course of performing the contract, the contractor is required to turn it in to the DLADS for 
disposal.  See PWS Section C.7.1.5.1. 
 
Q264:  Reference C.7.2.1 Real Property – Service Orders and Preventive/Recurring 
Maintenance, page 96, The PWS states that “The Contractor shall conduct Preventative 
Maintenance (PM) and Maintenance and Repair (M&R) services to sustain an inventory of assets 
identified by the Real Property Asset File (RPAF) within the Cantonment Area from 
deteriorating beyond their useful life as limited by funding.”C.12.1 Specific Requirements states 
that 6200 routine service orders were processed;  1800 urgent service orders were processed;   60 
emergency service orders were processed;375 preventive maintenance service orders were 
processed; That there are 362 waterless urinals; 350 routine service orders were processed for the 
sign shop.  
 
Q264a:  Q. Can the government please provide a detail list of what type of routine service orders 
were processed e.g. leaky faucet, cracked window pane, damaged shingle, etc for the 6200 
service orders? 
 
A264a:  This level of detail is not available. 
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Q264b:  Can the government please provide a detail list of what type of urgent service orders 
were processed?   
 
A264b:  This level of detail is not available. 
 
Q264c:  Can the government please provide a detail list of what type of emergency service 
orders were processed?  
 
A264c:  This level of detail is not available. 
 
Q264d:  Can the government please provide a detail list of what type of preventive maintenance 
service orders were processed? 
 
A264d:  This level of details is not available. 
 
Q264e:  Can the government please elaborate on the reference in C.12.1 Specific Requirements 
“Number of Urinals” been 362? 
 
A264e:  There are 362 waterless urinals currently installed in building on Fort Irwin that are 
covered under the workload for this contract. 
 
Q264f:  How often do the urinals get service? 
 
A264f:  In accordance with the manufacturer’s recommendations. 
 
Q264g:  Can the government define what a routine service order for a sign shop consist of? 
 
A264g:  The service order would consist of anything that needs to be created, maintained or 
repaired in relation to the specific sign. 
   
Q264h:  Were the urinals installed, removed, replaced?   
 
A264h:  The waterless urinals were installed to replace the old urinals. 
 
Q264i:  Does a routine service order for a sign include design, painting and installation?   
 
A264i:  It could depend on the type of sign and whether it is for making a new sign or repairing 
an existing sign. 
 
Q265:  Reference C.7.2.2 Equipment Files, and As-Built Drawings, page 97, The PWS states 
that “The Contractor shall maintain equipment files and as-built drawings.”  Q. Will the 
government provide a list of each piece of installed equipment currently in the RPAF?  Q. Can 
the government please define/explain what an entry in the Real/Non-Real Property and Fixed 
Equipment Asset File consist of?   
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A265:  This is the "technical library" and all information is maintained in the files that will be 
transferred to the new contractor.  An entry in the Real/Non-Real Property and Fixed Equipment 
Asset File may depend on the item.  An entry may be identifying information, warranty, As-Built 
Drawings, Owner’s/Operating Manual, etc. 
 
Q266:  Reference C.7.2.3 Appliance and Food Service Equipment, page 98, The PWS states that 
“The Contractor shall provide maintenance and repair activities necessary to keep an inventory 
of appliances and food service equipment in good working order and at an Urgent priority level. 
The Contractor shall also provide regularly scheduled and unscheduled maintenance and minor 
repairs.” Q. Will the government provide a list of how many pieces of equipment are in 
appliances and food service since Attachment 6 does not specify/breakdown items under the 
Building & Structures section, in fact it only shows 169 and C.12.1 Specific Requirements only 
states that the number of appliances (including food cooking and processing, fans, condensers, 
disposals, exhaust hoods, etc.) is 410?  Q. Will the government provide a detailed list of how 
many PM services were provided in these items?  Q. Will the government provide a list of what 
type of services were rendered and on what type of equipment?  
 
A266:  No, a detailed list of how many PM services were performed will not be provided.  It is 
incumbent upon the Contractor to develop their own PM schedule in performance of the follow-
on contract, in accordance with manufacturers recommended procedures and OEM standards.  
See C.7-10-WL. 
 
Q267:  Reference C.7.2.5 Wash Facilities/Racks, page 100, The PWS states that “The Contractor 
shall provide maintenance and repair activities necessary to keep wash facilities in good working 
order.  This includes vehicle wash points, vehicle wash facilities, tracked vehicle washers and the 
trash container/dumpster wash point.  The Contractor shall provide regularly scheduled and 
unscheduled maintenance and minor repairs.” Since the workload data in C.12.1 Specific 
Requirements only states that the number of rotational cycles using the wash racks were 12, there 
were 4 detail analysis completed and the number of swimming pool operating hours including 
non-customer hours were 12 as well. Can the government provide historical data on how many 
services were provided for all areas specified in C.7.2.5.1 b through j 
 
A267:  This level of detail is not available. 
 
Q268:  Reference C.7.2.7 Flight Operations - Lighting, Electrical Grounding, Lightning 
Protection Systems, page 103, The PWS states that “The Contractor shall maintain and repair all 
navigation, landing, taxi, and associated airfield lighting. The Contractor shall inspect, test and 
maintain all helicopter-pad grounding points ,electrical grounding systems, lighting, and 
lightning protection systems installed on facilities listed in the RPAF.  The Contractor shall 
inspect, test, maintain and repair all other locations, e.g., antennas, water tanks.” Can the 
government provide a detailed list of the services performed in support of Flight Operations for 
areas identified in C.7.2.7.1 a through c other than the number of man hours provided in C.12.1 
Specific Requirements?   
 
A268:  Refer to C.7.2.7, FM-5-430-001  
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Q269:  Reference C.7.2.11 Electrical System Services and Emergency Generators, page 106, The 
PWS states that “The Contractor shall maintain and repair the electrical systems in accordance 
with the lines of demarcation (TE C.7-22-SPEC).”  Q. Can the government provide a number of 
generators that will require these services?  Q. Can the government please provide a detail list of 
what type of routine service orders were processed of the 850 service orders as stated in C.12.1 
Specific Requirements?  Q. Can the government please provide a detail list of what type of 
urgent service orders were processed of the 475 service orders as stated in C.12.1 Specific 
Requirements?  Q. Can the government please provide a detail list of what type of emergency 
service orders were processed of the 12 service orders as stated in C.12.1 Specific Requirements? 
Q. Can the government please provide a detail list of what type of preventive maintenance 
service orders were processed of the 1300 service orders as stated in C.12.1 Specific 
Requirements?   
 
A269:  See TE C.7.7.-WL for the number of generators that require services in accordance with 
manufacturer’s recommended guidelines. A detailed list with the different types of services 
orders is not available.  
 
Q270:  Reference C.7.4.1 Non-Hazardous Integrated Solid Waste Services, page 123, The PWS 
states that “The Contractor shall provide necessary labor, equipment, tools, materials, vehicles, 
and other items and services necessary to perform refuse, recycling, and landfill services at NTC 
and Fort Irwin, CA (Class III Landfill)” Will the government provide the number of customers 
supported with refuse and recycling?   
 
A270:  Refer to PWS C.7.4.1.1., second paragraph, “The Contractor shall be responsible for the 
collection and disposal of non-hazardous solid waste and recyclable materials for all buildings 
and facilities listed in the RPAF.” Refer to C.7-27-WL and C.7-26-WL. 
 
Q271:  Reference C.9.1.i. Health Facilities and Maintenance, page 146, Maintain the capability 
to respond within 1 hour , 24 hours a day to meet emergency requirements. What was the 
frequency of call backs in the past 12 months or for CY 10?  
 
A271:  There were 2-5 call backs per week in the past 12 months.   
 
Q272:  Reference C.9.1.1 Healthcare Facilities Repair and Maintenance, page 146, General, 
What are the licensing and certification requirements for support of the MEDDAC? 
 
A272:  The Contractor is responsible for proposing personnel that are qualified to meet the 
requirements of the PWS. 
 
Q273:  Reference C.9.9.2 Special Provisions, page 148, As reads, use of DMLSS system, Please 
provide a copy of inventory and reports for last 24 months.  
 
A273:  This data is not available.   
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Q274:  It is has been disclosed to us that there is a second CBA with a machinists union at Ft. 
Irwin that represents employees of one of the incumbent subcontractors.  Can the government 
provide a copy of the CBA that covers these employees?  Our understanding is that these 
employees work in the DPW Non Building and Structural Services Division.   
 
A274:  See Q&A 14. 
 
Q275:  Please clarify how the commercial mail is inspected/delivered.  It seems to be not clear in 
section C.6.   
 
A275:  See PWS C.6.1.1 and C.6.1. Mail is picked up from USPS across the hall and "delivered" 
to mail boxes on the government side of the Central Mail Room and to customers at the customer 
service window.   
 
Q276:  Reference Section L, paragraph C.3 Volume I Tab 2 that states “Offerors shall identify 
key personnel (positions), job qualification standards (JQS) for these positions, and rationale for 
identifying each position as key. JQS shall address as minimum, education, certifications, and 
professional experience requirements for each position.” This instruction seems to require 
offerors to identify positions (not specific persons) and discuss qualifications for persons. In 
other words it does not seem to call for a specific resume for the position. 
However, this Section L seems to contradict Section M, paragraph C Factor 1 Subfactor A that 
states: “The Government will evaluate the extent to which the Offeror’s key personnel bring 
experience and value to support the Fort Irwin installation.” This seems to require specific 
resumes for specific persons identified as key, not just the JQS required in Section L.  Question: 
(1) Does the Government require resumes for the key positions the Offeror identifies or is the 
Government going to evaluate the Offeror’s proposed key positions from the JQS the Offeror 
submits? 
 
A276:  See Q&A 208. 
 
Q277:  Reference Cost Proposal “Direct Labor Table PWS Section C.7 DPW. Note (a) states the 
offeror shall provide the labor build-up segregated by sub-functional areas in section C.7 of the 
PWS to the following level.” The note goes on to list the “following level”(s) required to be 
segregated. The list includes C.7.2.1 Real Property Service Orders and Preventive/Recurring 
Maintenance. Aren’t the other listed break-outs that follow C.7.2.1 (i.e. “through C.7.2.11”) 
somewhat if not all included in C.7.2.1?  Please clarify. 
 
A277: The breakout/subsections C.7.2.1 through C.7.2.11 are all included within the PWS 
(sub)section C.7.2.  However ALL sub-section levels of the PWS within section C.7 should be 
annotated/addressed in the Direct Labor Table under TAB D of the cost/price volume.   
 
Q278:  It is clear that the required text font is Times New Roman.   For graphics,  tables, charts, 
etc., we typically use a font such as Arial or Arial Narrow.  Would Arial or Arial Narrow be 
acceptable for tables, callout boxes, charts, and other graphics?  
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A278: Font shall be Times New Roman, Size 12 with the exception of figures and tables which 
shall have a Font Size no smaller than 8.    
 
Q279:  Reference: PWS, Sections C.9 (in particular Para C.9.1.1.q.) and C.12, Question: The 
solicitation workload data does not include all equipment listings needed for a complete 
assessment of required maintenance for PWS Section C.9 U.S. Army Medical Department 
Activity (MEDDAC) O&M. In particular it does not include equipment vaguely referenced in 
the C.9.1.1 requirement that we: “q. Perform maintenance and repairs regardless of origin. 
Particular attention shall be placed on fire barriers and fire doors.” We request that the following 
specific items be added to Section C.12: Fire doors, overhead doors, extinguishing systems, fire 
pump, plumbing fixture service, drinking fountains, backflow prevention device, emergency 
lights, UPS, motor control center, panel board, fire alarm systems. 
 
A279: This level of detail is not available. 

Q280:  Reference:  PWS Section C.7.1.1.6 (b) and (j) HAZMAT and Waste Management 
 
Q280(a):  Please confirm the Contractor’s indemnity for noncompliance with and/or violation of 
Federal, State, and local environmental and Life, Health, Safety (LHS) regulations and 
Department of Defense (DoD), Army and National Training Center (NTC) regulations and 
policies is limited solely to cases where Contractor is the generator of HAZMAT and does not 
apply where said noncompliance/violation results from HAZMAT generated by others, including 
the U.S. government? 
 
A280(a):  The Contractor is responsible for developing their own Hazardous Waste Management 
Plan to control any hazardous waste they generate.  They are not responsible for managing Fort 
Irwin’s HAZMAT program.  
 
Q280(b):  Please confirm that even if the Contracting Officer gives the Contractor a Notice to 
Proceed to dispose of hazardous material other than the Contractors, the government Prime 
Contract and PWS/PRS and all the other contract documents do not and shall not require: (a). 
Contractor to indemnify the government with the an indemnity similar to the Contractor’s 
indemnity at PWS Section C.7.1.1.6 (b) for noncompliance/violations caused by Third Parties; 
nor

 

 shall require: (b) Contractor to take title to waste, to be characterized as (or, in fact, made) a 
generator of waste, to sign manifests or bills of lading, to be an arranger for transportation of 
hazardous waste or to require Contractor to select the transporter or disposal facility? 

A280(b):  See response above.  The Contractor is only required to operate the landfill in 
accordance with the PWS.  The Contractor is not required to dispose of any hazardous waste. 
 
Q281:  Reference: PWS Section C.7.4.1 Non-Hazardous Integrated Solid Waste Services  
 
Q281(a):  Please confirm the government will include a differing site conditions clause regarding 
unknown subsurface and latent physical conditions at the landfill? 
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A281(a):  The Government will not include a differing site conditions clause regarding unknown 
subsurfaces and latent physical conditions at the landfill.  The landfill currently has all the 
permits required to operate. 
 
Q281(b):  Please confirm that Contractor will not be responsible for whatever conditions are 
encountered on site at the time Contractor takes over operations at the landfill? 
 
A281(b):  The Contractor is not responsible for any potential violations that they did not create.  
It is incumbent upon the Contractor to notify the Government as soon as possible when potential 
hazardous material is identified . 
 
Q281(c):  Please confirm it is the government’s position that Contractor can rely on all 
information provided by the government in preparation of Contractor’s proposal? 
 
A281(c):  Yes. 
 
Q281(d): Please confirm it is the government’s position that the Contractor is not

 

 responsible for 
site conditions beyond those represented to it or for which it is contracted to determine is 
required? 

A281(d): During Phase-in and Phase-out, incoming contractor will be working with outgoing 
contractor and government environmental personnel doing the site conditions evaluation and 
determine who is responsible for what. Contractor is responsible for operating the landfill in 
accordance with the PWS and provisions of the landfill permit.  Landfill has never been shut 
down for non-compliance.  If differing conditions are observed during phase-in/phase-out, 
government should be notified immediately.   
 
Q282:  The PWS C.8.3.1(2) states, "Of the twenty-four (24) personnel assigned as Firefighters."   
PWS section C.12 states "Number of personnel assigned as firefighters  - 24."  PWS section C.12 
also states that the "Number of fire-crew man hours" is 177,632 hours, which is over 90 FTEs.  
Does this imply 24 firefighters per shift, or is this 24 firefighters total to cover all shifts?  
Additionally, how does the 177,632 fire-crew man hours correlate to the 24 firefighters? 
  
A282: See Q&A 64. 
 
Q283:  PWS C.12 (C.7.1.1.4) states that the Davis-Bacon Projects number of man-hours is 
40,000.  The PWS does not define specific scope for these man-hours.  Is it the Government's 
intent for the Contractor to include the 40,000 man-hours in CLINs 0006, 1006, 2006, 3006 and 
4006? 
 
A283:  See Q&A 26 and 154. 
  
Q284:  The material CLINS in Section B each have a Material Handling Rate.  Please confirm 
that the contractor is to multiply their Material Handling Rate by the Estimated Material plug 
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number, and include only the dollars for Material handling in the CLIN, rather than including the 
material plug in addition to the material handling. 
 
A284:  The sum of the material plug amount and the material handling rate amount shall be 
included in the CLIN pricing.  
 
Q285:  Question: Section L, 3. (d) Volume IV - Cost Price (2) states, "A detailed cost proposal 
for each subcontract which exceeds $100,000 shall also be submitted."  Please confirm that 
including the "sanitized" subcontractor inputs within the Prime Contractor's volume (Original 
plus 4 copies), in addition to providing a single "un-sanitized - sealed" copy from each 
subcontractor is sufficient to meet this requirement. 
 
A285:  Yes, providing the “sanitized” subcontractor inputs within the Prime Contractor’s volume 
and a single “un-sanitized” copy from each subcontractor would be acceptable. 
 
Q286:  Site Visit. During the Site Visit it was noted that PWD employees were not carrying 
radios.  Will the Contractor be allowed to utililize radios (Motorola type)  in the performance of 
PWD work? If not, will the Government allow cellular telephones for PWD work? 
 
A286:  It is incumbent upon the Contractor to determine and propose the best solution to meet 
the Government’s requirement. 
 
Q287: Can you please advise where I can find a list of attendees of last weeks site visit? 
 
A287:  A site visit attendee list has been posted with this amendment. 


